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Key figures

in EUR million 2021 2020
1.1.- 1.4.— +— 1.1.- +— 1.4.- 1.1.- 31.12.7
31.3.7 30.6. previous 30.6. previous 30.6. 30.6.
year year
Results
Gross written premium 7,809.3 6,655.3 +7.9% 14,464.6 +10.0% 6,170.8 13,146.1
Net premium earned 5,692.7 5,822.6 +10.1% 11,515.3 +11.0% 5,287.2 10,378.1
Net underwriting result? 25.4 98.9 124.3 (285.5) (330.4)
Net investment income 441.1 424.7 +32.1% 865.8 +9.2% 3214 793.1
Operating profit (EBIT) 403.8 552.3 956.1 +89.9% 76.9 503.5
Group net income 305.9 364.7 670.6 +66.7% 101.5 402.4
Balance sheet
Policyholders’ surplus 14,822.2 14,859.2 +5.6% 13,7151 14,071.0
Equity attributable to share-
holders of Hannover Riick SE 11,043.0 11,050.6 +0.5% 10,687.7 10,995.0
Non-controlling interests 803.3 831.7 -1.5% 791.6 844.4
Hybrid capital 2,976.0 2,976.9 +33.4% 2,235.8 2,231.6
Investments (excl. funds withheld
by ceding companies) 52,282.9 52,847.7 +7.8% 48,768.1 49,001.6
Total assets 77,038.8 78,099.2 +9.3% 73,307.1 71,4375
Share
Earnings per share (basic and
diluted) in EUR 2.54 3.02 5.56 +66.7% 0.84 3.34
Book value per share in EUR 91.57 91.63 +0.5% 88.62 91.17
Share price at the end of the
period in EUR 155.80 141.10 -8.0% 153.40 130.30
Market capitalisation at the
end of the period 18,789.0 17,016.3 -8.0% 18,499.6 15,713.8
Ratios
Combined ratio (property and
casualty reinsurance)? 96.2% 95.7% 96.0% 104.8% 102.3%
Large losses as percentage of net
premium earned (property and
casualty reinsurance)? 5.0% 3.3% 4.2% 12.8% 10.7%
Retention 91.5% 89.2% 90.4% 90.4% 90.8%
Return on investment (excl. funds
withheld by ceding companies) 2.5% 2.9% 2.7% 2.2% 2.7%
EBIT margin* 7.1% 9.5% 8.3% 1.5% 4.9%
Return on equity (after tax) 11.1% 13.2% 12.2% 3.8% 7.6%

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8

2 Including interest on funds withheld and contract deposits
3 Hannover Re Group's net share for natural catastrophes and other major losses in excess of EUR 10 million gross as a percentage

of net premium earned

4 Operating result (EBIT)/net premium earned
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Jean-Jacques Henchoz,
Chairman of the
Executive Board

Dear shareholders,
ladies and gentlemen,

Our robust market position and superlative risk management were once again on show in the first six
months of the financial year and we delivered a thoroughly satisfactory business performance. Hannover
Re generated Group net income of EUR 671 million in the first half of 2021, marking a return to the
earnings level achieved prior to the pandemic.

With vaccination rates rising around the world and case numbers falling in many places, we are seeing
the cautious restoration of some degree of normalcy. Although we are looking to the future with opti-
mism and economic activity is opening up step by step in many countries, this pandemic is not yet be-
hind us. We are still facing an epidemic situation and the health and safety of our employees is our
number one priority. The Covid-19 crisis has called many things into question and led to lasting changes
in how we work together. The switch to working from home passed off smoothly for Hannover Re and
demonstrated once again that our team spirit is not defined by spatial proximity alone.

The devastating floods in Germany and neighbouring parts of Europe serve as a reminder that we have
no time to lose in our efforts to address climate change and minimise its impacts. As a reinsurer, we are
at our customers’ side as we help them to navigate the consequences of such catastrophic events. We
are playing our part in the development of joint solutions for future coverage concepts. Not only that, we
intend to progressively realign all areas of our business towards a more sustainable footing. In a reflec-
tion of this shift, Hannover Re has signed the Principles for Sustainable Insurance and the Principles for
Responsible Investment supported by the United Nations. Furthermore, we are actively reducing the
carbon intensity of our investments in accordance with the Paris Agreement on climate change.

In addition, our sustainability strategy attaches importance to the need for the private sector and gov-
ernments as well as public institutions to work together. Hannover Re is involved in a number of pub-
lic-private partnerships. The latest example is our cooperation with Willis Towers Watson and the inter-
national development and humanitarian aid organisation Global Communities to design an insurance
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product for communities in Colombia at risk from natural disasters such as floods and earthquakes. By
means of innovative parametric covers we want to play our part in further reducing the protection gap,
especially in developing and emerging countries. Similarly, when it comes to accumulation risks such as
pandemics — in other words risks that scarcely lend themselves to diversification — public-private part-
nerships offer a promising solution roadmap.

Turning now to a brief summary of the development of your company’s business in the first half-year
2021, Hannover Re can look back on a highly satisfactory first six months that were in line with our ex-
pectations overall. Group net income in the first half-year is also back to pre-crisis levels, as is true of the
return on equity. At the same time, our reinsurance coverage continues to enjoy strong demand, as is
evident from the profitable growth in Group gross premium. The treaty renewals in property and casual-
ty reinsurance in April, June and July similarly bore this out in impressive numbers. Pricing momentum
has been sustained. With a capital adequacy ratio under Solvency II of 250% as at 30 June 2021, Han-
nover Re’s financial position remains extremely robust. It continues to be the case that we offer our
customers the high-quality reinsurance protection they need in times like these. Our excellent financial
strength was also underlined recently by the rating agency Standard & Poor’s, which confirmed our
rating of AA- (“Very Strong”). Based on the results for the first six months, I am optimistic for the devel-
opment of Hannover Re’s business over the remainder of the year. We are well on track to achieve our
ambitious goals in the current financial year.

On behalf of the entire Executive Board I would like to thank you, our valued shareholders, for the trust
that you place in us. I would further like to thank our employees, whose considerable dedication is vital
to our success. My thanks also go out to all our business partners and clients for their trusting and pos-

itive cooperation — in times of crisis and beyond.

Yours sincerely,

>

Jean-Jacques Henchoz
Chairman of the Executive Board
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Report on economic position

Business development

* Gross premium for the Group grows by 14.2% adjusted for exchange rate effects

» Losses due to the pandemic totalling EUR 263.4 million in life and health reinsurance
» Return on investment reaches 2.7% and surpasses target of around 2.4%

» Group net income surges by 66.7% to EUR 670.6 million

» Return on equity above minimum target at 12.2%

The first six months of 2021 for Hannover Re passed off
broadly in line with our expectations. We booked further vig-
orous profitable growth in gross premium, especially in prop-
erty and casualty reinsurance. Gross written premium on the
Group level climbed by 10.0% to EUR 14.5 billion (previous
year: EUR 13.1 billion). The increase would have been 14.2%
at constant exchange rates. Our retention fell to 90.4%
(90.8%). Net premium earned rose by 11.0% to EUR 11.5
billion (EUR 10.4 billion). Growth would have reached 14.9%
adjusted for exchange rate effects.

The 1 January 2021 treaty renewals in property and casualty
reinsurance passed off thoroughly satisfactorily overall. The
positive momentum in terms of both pricing and conditions
carried over to further rounds of renewals as the year pro-
gressed, albeit in somewhat more muted form. The segment
result improved sharply after the heavy losses from the pan-
demic in the previous year. Large losses in property and casu-
alty reinsurance came in below expectations. No further
strains were incurred for net account from Covid-19-related
losses.

In life and health reinsurance, on the other hand, further loss
expenditures were incurred in connection with the elevated
mortality resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic, most notably
in the United States. Altogether, the additional strains from
the pandemic added up to EUR 263.4 million in the first half-
year. This was opposed by positive one-time income of EUR
129.3 million in the first quarter from a restructuring measure
in US mortality business. Thanks also to pleasing demand in
the area of financial solutions, the first six months therefore
passed off satisfactorily on the whole in life and health rein-
surance. The segment result fell by 44.4% in view of the loss-
es associated with the pandemic.

Our portfolio of investments totalled EUR 52.8 billion at the
end of June, an increase of 7.8% compared to the position as
at 31 December 2020. Investment income improved on the
previous year by 9.2%. The annualised average return on in-
vestment reached 2.7% and was thus higher than the target
of around 2.4%.

Other income and expenses declined by 22.0% to EUR 138.2
million (EUR 177.1 million). This was driven primarily by
movements in exchange rates, which particularly affected the
result in property and casualty reinsurance.

The operating profit (EBIT) generated on the Group level im-
proved by 89.9% to EUR 956.1 million (EUR 503.5 million).
Group net income surged by 66.7% to EUR 670.6 million
(EUR 402.4 million). Earnings per share thus came in at EUR
5.56 (EUR 3.34).

In March Hannover Riuck SE issued subordinated debt in a
nominal amount of EUR 750 million. The bond has a maturity
date of 30 June 2042 and a first scheduled call option on 30
December 2031. In an attractive market environment it en-
ables us, among other things, to act on additional market op-
portunities that emerge from the current favourable pricing
trend on global reinsurance markets.

Hannover Re’s shareholders’ equity increased by 0.5% as at
30 June 2021 to EUR 11.1 billion (31 December 2020: EUR
11.0 billion). The annualised return on equity stood at 12.2%
(31 December 2020: 8.2%), thereby clearly outperforming
the minimum target of 900 basis points above the risk-free
interest rate. The book value per share amounted to EUR
91.63 (31 December 2020: EUR 91.17).

Going forward, the issue of sustainability will have an even
greater influence on the selection and composition of our in-
vestments and on our business. Most recently, we have taken
further concrete steps by becoming a signatory to the United
Nations-supported Principles for Responsible Investment and
Principles for Sustainable Insurance.

In our investments, and especially in the fixed-income portfo-
lio, we conduct active screening and we are regrouping step
by step into more sustainable investments. By 2025, for ex-
ample, we aim to reduce the carbon footprint of our invest-
ments by 30%. Furthermore, among other things, we are
stepping up our investing activities in sustainable infrastruc-
ture investments and impact investment funds, which are in-



tended to deliver not only a favourable financial return but
also — most notably — measurably positive effects on the envi-
ronment and society.

In addition, we shall support the expansion of climate-
friendly technologies both on the underwriting side and in

our investments and progressively scale back our exposure
to technologies harmful to the climate. This has been en-
shrined in our sustainability strategy, where we have also set
ourselves the goal of redoubling our efforts to reduce the
protection gap in developing countries and thereby enable
more people to access adequate insurance protection.

Results of operations, financial position and net assets

Property and casualty reinsurance

« Gross premium up by 17.2% adjusted for exchange rate effects
« No additional net strains from the pandemic in the first half of the year

« Combined ratio improves sharply to 96.0%

« Prices and conditions show sustained positive momentum
» Operating profit for the first half-year improves substantially on previous year

In property and casualty reinsurance no further net strains
were incurred from Covid-19-related losses in the first half of
the year. We had already boosted our corresponding IBNR
reserves at the end of the 2020 financial year in order to sub-
stantially reduce the risk of additional reserving in property
and casualty reinsurance.

Against the backdrop of the continued tense risk situation
around the world, the main renewal season in traditional
property and casualty reinsurance as at 1 January 2021
passed off thoroughly satisfactorily overall for Hannover Re.
The pricing momentum of the previous year was sustained
and we again generated pleasing growth in our renewed port-
folio at significantly improved prices and conditions. Some
67% of Hannover Re’s traditional property and casualty rein-
surance portfolio (excluding facultative reinsurance, ILS ac-
tivities and structured reinsurance) was up for renewal on 1
January. We grew the premium volume here by 8.3%. The
average price increase amounted to 5.5%, reflecting further
improvements in prices and conditions that varied in scope
across all lines and regions.

The treaty renewals as at 1 April 2021, the date when we tra-
ditionally renew our business in Japan as well as to a lesser
extent in Australia, New Zealand, the other Asian markets
and North America, also concluded on a positive note for
Hannover Re. The total renewed premium volume grew by
7.4%, while the price increase stood at 5.0%.

Gross written premium in property and casualty reinsurance
climbed by 11.9% in the first half-year to EUR 10.3 billion
(previous year: EUR 9.2 billion). At constant exchange rates
the increase would have reached 17.2%. Net premium earned
grew by 14.2% to EUR 7.8 billion (EUR 6.9 billion). Adjusted
for exchange rate effects, it would have grown by 19.2%.

The burden of large losses in the first six months of EUR
325.9 million (EUR 737.0 million) for net account came in
considerably lower than the figure for the comparable period
and below our budgeted expectation of EUR 476 million. The
largest individual losses were the outbreak of extreme winter
weather in the US state of Texas, with net expenditure of EUR
136.4 million in the first half-year, an industrial loss in Ger-
many totalling EUR 34.8 million and a credit loss of EUR 20.7
million. In the category of large losses we include catastroph-
ic events that are expected to result in gross loss payments of
more than EUR 10 million for our company.

The underwriting result for total property and casualty rein-
surance including interest on funds withheld and contract
deposits closed with a profit of EUR 316.8 million (EUR -160.7
million). The combined ratio improved significantly to 96.0%
(102.3%) and was thus in line with our expected level of no
more than 96%.

The income from assets under own management booked for
property and casualty reinsurance surged by 31.5% to EUR
569.7 million (EUR 433.2 million).

The operating profit (EBIT) for the Property & Casualty rein-
surance business group improved considerably to EUR 777.9
million (EUR 290.0 million). The EBIT margin consequently
reached 9.9% (4.2%). The net income generated in property
and casualty reinsurance more than doubled to EUR 592.1
million (EUR 244.7 million).
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Key figures for property and casualty reinsurance

1.1.- 1.4.- +/- 1.1.- +- 1.4.- 1.1
31.3.7 30.6. previous previous 30.6. 30
year year

Gross written premium 5,692.9 4,573.7 +9.2% 10,266.5 +11.9% 4,188.1 9,174.2
Net premium earned 3,863.1 3,983.6 +12.8% 7,846.6 +14.2% 3,531.1 6,869.1
Underwriting result? 147.3 169.4 316.8 (167.9) (160.7)
Net investment income 268.5 315.8 +94.6% 584.4 +27.4% 162.3 458.7
Operating result (EBIT) 312.1 465.8 7779  +168.2% (14.7) 290.0
Group net income 261.1 331.0 592.1 +141.9% 375 244.7
Earnings per share in EUR 2.17 2.74 4.91 +141.9% 0.31 2.03
EBIT margin? 8.1% 11.7% 9.9% -0.4% 4.2%
Combined ratio? 96.2% 95.7% 96.0% 104.8% 102.3%
Retention 92.6% 89.8% 91.3% 90.9% 91.4%

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
2 Including interest on funds withheld and contract deposits
3 Operating result (EBIT)/net premium earned

Life and health reinsurance

« Growth of 7.3% in gross premium adjusted for exchange rate effects

« Sustained customer interest in tailor-made financial solutions and longevity covers
+ Losses due to the pandemic amount to EUR 263.4 million in the first half-year

» Operating profit for the first six months down by 16.4%

The impacts of the pandemic continued to be the dominant
issue in life and health reinsurance, particularly in the area of
mortality covers. The strains incurred in life and health rein-
surance in connection with Covid-19 amounted to EUR 263.4
million in the first half-year.

At EUR 166.8 million, the bulk of the pandemic-related losses
in the first six months were attributable to the United States,
the largest market for mortality covers. Of this total amount,
roughly EUR 60 million was allocable to the second quarter.
Clients in Latin America and South Africa were also hard hit
by Covid-19 losses. While further loss expenditures are to be
anticipated in life and health reinsurance, we expect them to
decline as vaccination programmes continue to progress.

With a view to protecting ourselves against extreme mortality
such as that which can result from pandemics like Covid-19,
we successfully placed another layer of our extreme mortality
cover on the capital market. Since 2013 Hannover Re has
brought layers of this extreme mortality cover to the capital
market on a regular basis.

As already reported, the pandemic-related losses were op-
posed by positive one-time income in the first quarter from a
restructuring measure in US mortality business amounting to
EUR 129.3 million. This one-time income arose because a

cedant of Hannover Riick SE disposed of parts of its life in-
surance portfolio. In this context it was possible to partially
liquidate or restructure the collateralisation arrangements
put in place by Hannover Riick SE in connection with the
reinsurance of this portfolio.

At the same time, we are benefiting from sustained strong
demand worldwide for coverage concepts designed for lon-
gevity risks as well as in our financial solutions business.
While the bulk of new financial solutions business still stems
from the United States and China, the lively interest now be-
ing shown among customers in other markets gives us
grounds for optimism when it comes to generating new busi-
ness here. The situation is similar when it comes to the lon-
gevity segment, where the market has hitherto been focused
primarily on the United Kingdom. We closed deals here in the
Netherlands and France as well in the first six months. The
landscape for life and health reinsurance was satisfactory on
the whole in the first half of the year.

The gross premium volume in life and health reinsurance
grew by 5.7% as at 30 June 2021 to EUR 4.2 billion (previous
year: EUR 4.0 billion). Growth would have reached 7.3% at
unchanged exchange rates. Net premium earned rose by
4.5% to EUR 3.7 billion (EUR 3.5 billion). The increase would
have been 6.4% adjusted for exchange rate effects.



Investment income from assets under own management in life
and healthreinsurance declined by 44.5% to EUR 123.2 million
(EUR 222.2 million). The underwriting result for life and
health reinsurance including interest on funds withheld and
contract deposits closed with a loss of EUR 192.9 million
(EUR -169.5 million).

Key figures for life and health reinsurance

in EUR million

The operating result (EBIT) fell by 16.4% to EUR 179.1 mil-
lion (EUR 214.2 million). The net income for the Life & Health
reinsurance business group contracted by 44.4% to EUR
104.8 million (EUR 188.4 million).

2021 2020

1.1.- 1.4.— +/- 1.1.- +/- 1.4.- 1.1.- §_

31.3.7 30.6. previous 30.6. previous 30.6. E

year year 5

Gross written premium 2,116.4 2,081.7 +5.0% 4,198.1 +5.7% 1,982.7 3,971.9 §

Net premium earned 1,829.6 1,838.9 +4.7% 3,668.5 +4.5% 1,756.1 3,508.9 E

Investment income 172.0 108.7 -31.3% 280.7 -15.7% 158.3 332.9 €

Operating result (EBIT) 92.0 87.1 -3.2% 179.1 -16.4% 89.9 214.2 '%

Net income after tax 56.8 47.9 -38.7% 104.8 -44.4% 78.2 188.4 E
Earnings per share in EUR 0.47 0.40 -38.7% 0.87 -44.4% 0.65 1.56
Retention 88.6% 87.8% 88.2% 89.4% 89.4%
EBIT margin? 5.0% 4.7% 4.9% 5.1% 6.1%

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
2 Operating result (EBIT)/net premium earned

Investments

* Interest rates stubbornly remain very low even after rising in the first quarter

* Ordinary investment income up by 12.2%
« Total investment income improves by 9.2%

» Return on investment reaches 2.7% and surpasses target of around 2.4%

The performance of our investments was very pleasing in the
first half of the year. In addition to the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic, however, numerous geopolitical and economic
challenges remain. On the key fixed-income markets for our
company increases in the interest rate level — which in some
instances were very appreciable — were observed in the first
quarter for our main currency areas, especially in the longer
maturity segments. Despite modest retreats subsequently
recorded on the US dollar and pound sterling markets, the
higher level overall is beneficial both for our new investments
and our reinvesting activities. Interest rates nevertheless
remain on a very low level.

Equity markets surged sharply higher in the first three months
of the year, but increasingly tended to move sideways as the
second quarter progressed. It remains the case that we do not
share the longer-term inflation concerns of many market
players and we anticipate effects primarily of a temporary na-
ture. We no longer see any appreciable implications of the
pandemic’s economic impacts for our investments.

Going forward, sustainability considerations will exert an
even greater influence on the selection and composition of
our investments. As part of our sustainability strategy, we are
actively scaling back the proportion of securities whose issu-
ers are involved in coal production and converting coal into
energy. What is more, we are increasingly making sustainable
infrastructure investments and investing in impact invest-
ment funds, the goal of which is to generate not only a posi-
tive financial return but also measurably positive effects on
the environment and society. In accordance with the Paris
Agreement on climate change we are actively reducing the
carbon intensity of our investments.

Our portfolio of assets under own management increased to
EUR 52.8 billion as at 30 June (31 December 2020:
EUR 49.0 billion). With credit spreads only slightly narrower
overall, higher interest rates led to declines in the fair values
of our fixed-income securities. These were comfortably offset
by positive exchange rate effects, primarily from the US dol-
lar and pound sterling. The inflow of cash from issuance of a
bond and the one-time reclassification of holdings from the




technical account to investments as part of a restructuring
measure in US mortality business also had favourable impli-
cations for the portfolio. Driven principally by the rise in in-
terest rates, the unrealised gains in our fixed-income portfo-
lio contracted to EUR 1.8 billion (31 December 2020: EUR 2.6
billion) as at the end of June.

In the first quarter we made the most of market opportunities
and disposed of parts of our equity holdings. In the area of
fixed-income securities we increasingly focused our new in-
vestments and reinvestment activities on instruments that of-
fer higher returns — in due consideration of the risk profiles —
relative to government bonds. We expanded our portfolio of
inflation-linked bonds in response to requirements from the
technical account as part of regular portfolio maintenance.
The modified duration of our fixed-income portfolio — at 5.8
(previous year: 5.8) — was left unchanged in comparison with
the end of the previous year.

Ordinary investment income excluding interest on funds
withheld and contract deposits came in at EUR 681.7 million
(EUR 607.7 million), a gratifyingly marked improvement on
the level of the comparable period that was even slightly
stronger than anticipated. While ordinary income from
fixed-income securities and the real estate sector was on a
par with the corresponding period of the previous year, earn-
ings from alternative investment funds showed appreciable
increases. Interest on funds withheld and contract deposits
also rose sharply to EUR 172.2 million (EUR 136.3 million).

The net balance of gains realised on disposals totalled EUR
142.0 million (EUR 139.8 million) and can be attributed pri-
marily to regrouping moves as part of portfolio maintenance
as well as the aforementioned share sales. The impairments
taken in an amount of altogether EUR 38.4 million were ap-
preciably less than in the first half of the previous year
(EUR 85.1 million), which was clearly affected by the emerg-
ing economic impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. Of the total
amount, EUR 13.9 million (EUR 45.0 million) was attributable
to alternative investments and EUR 5.6 million (EUR 9.2 mil-
lion) to real estate funds. Fixed-income securities accounted
for EUR 0.2 million (EUR 11.8 million). The depreciation rec-
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ognised on directly held real estate was stable at EUR 18.1
million (EUR 18.5 million).

We recognise a derivative for the credit risk associated with
special life reinsurance treaties (ModCo) under which securi-
ties deposits are held by cedants for our account; the perfor-
mance of this derivative in the period under review gave rise
to unrealised losses of EUR 14.1 million (loss of EUR 9.7 mil-
lion) recognised in investment income. In economic terms we
assume a neutral development for this item, and hence the
volatility that can occur in specific quarters provides no in-
sight into the actual business development. Losses were addi-
tionally recorded from the performance of another derivative
relating to the technical account. Altogether, the unrealised
losses in our assets recognised at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to EUR 43.1 million (gains of EUR 50.6 mil-
lion).

The total investment income of EUR 865.8 million (EUR 793.1
million) showed a pleasing improvement on the level of the
comparable period despite negative changes in the fair values
of assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss. In-
come from assets under own management accounted for EUR
693.7 million (EUR 656.8 million), producing an annualised
average return (including effects from derivatives) of 2.7%
and beating our full-year target of around 2.4%.



Net investment income

in EUR million 2021 2020

1.1.- 1.4.- +/- 1.1.- +/— 1.4.- 1.1.-
31.3.7 30.6. previous 30.6. previous 30.6.
year year
Ordinary investment income? 310.2 371.5 +32.0% 681.7 +12.2% 281.4 607.7
Result from participations in

associated companies 12.2 3.8 16.0 +149.1% 0.0 6.4

Realised gains/losses 90.2 51.8 +36.6% 142.0 +1.6% 38.0 139.8
Appreciation? 211 17.3 -69.4% 38.4 -54.9% 56.5 85.1 t
[=]
Change in fair value of &
financial instruments* (49.7) 6.6 -83.2% (43.1) -185.2% 39.0 50.6 ;:.
Investment expenses 313 333 +6.9% 64.6 +3.1% 31.1 62.7 g
()
Net investment income from assets 2
under own management 310.6 383.1 +41.5% 693.7 +5.6% 270.7 656.8 =
. . =
Net investment income from =
funds withheld 130.5 41.6 -17.8% 172.2 +26.3% 50.7 136.3 S
Total investment income 441.1 424.7 +32.1% 865.8 +9.2% 3214 793.1 §

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8

2 Excluding expenses on funds withheld and contract deposits
3 Including depreciation/impairments on real estate

4 Portfolio at fair value through profit or loss and trading
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Opportunity and risk report

Risk report

« Hannover Re continues to have good capital resources in excess of the defined strategic
thresholds. The capital position is constantly reviewed against the backdrop of possible changes
in the risk profile and the impacts of the Covid-19 crisis.

» QOur risk management system continuously monitors newly added and changing risks and is able
to respond flexibly to changes in internal and external factors.

The present opportunity and risk report summarises the key
risk information for the first half of 2021. For additional infor-
mation on the opportunities and risks associated with our
business please see the Group Annual Report 2020.

Risk landscape of Hannover Re

In the context of its business operations the Hannover Re
Group enters into a broad variety of risks. These risks are
deliberately accepted, steered and monitored in order to be
able to act on the associated opportunities. The parameters
and decisions of the Executive Board with respect to the risk
appetite of the Hannover Re Group, which are based on the
calculations of risk-bearing capacity, are fundamental to the
acceptance of risks. Through our business operations on all
continents and the diversification between our Property & Ca-
sualty and Life & Health reinsurance business groups we are
able to effectively allocate our capital in light of opportunity
and risk considerations. Along with our principal business
operations as a reinsurer of property&casualty and
life &health business, we also transact primary insurance in
selected niche markets and are active in the securitisation of
insurance risks on the capital market. In this context crucial
importance attaches to our risk management in order to en-
sure that, among other things, risks to the reinsurance portfo-
lio remain calculable and even exceptional major losses do
not have an unduly adverse impact on the result.

The risk landscape of Hannover Re encompasses:

¢ underwriting risks in property & casualty and life & health
reinsurance which originate from our business activities
and manifest themselves inter alia in fluctuations in loss
estimates as well as in unexpected catastrophes and
changes in biometric factors such as mortality,

* market risks which arise in connection with our invest-
ments and also as a consequence of the valuation of
sometimes long-term payment obligations associated
with the technical account,
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e counterparty default risks resulting from our diverse
business relationships and payment obligations inter
alia with clients, retrocessionaires and banks,

¢ operational risks which may derive, for example, from
deficient processes or systems and

* reputational risks, resulting for example from inade-
quate consideration of sustainability aspects, liquidity
risks, strategic risks and emerging risks.

As a general principle, all risk types are influenced by sustain-
ability considerations, including for example climate change.

At the present time, our most significant individual risks are
the default and spread risks within the market risks, the re-
serving and catastrophe risks within the underwriting risks of
property and casualty reinsurance and the mortality and mor-
bidity risks within the underwriting risks of life and health
reinsurance.

Strategy implementation

The Group strategy of Hannover Re for the strategy cycle
2021-2023 was adopted in the 2020 financial year. Our strat-
egy is based on the interplay between performance drivers,
performance enablers and solid fundamentals. Robust gover-
nance and risk management, integrated compliance and cor-
porate social responsibility establish the foundation for our
growth as a trusted global reinsurance partner.

Our risk strategy is derived from the corporate strategy. It is
the core element in our handling of opportunities and risks.
The risk strategy, risk register and central system of limits
and thresholds - as integral components of our Risk and Cap-
ital Management Guideline — are reviewed at least once a
year. In this way we ensure that our risk management system
is kept up to date.



We manage our total enterprise risk such that we can expect
to generate positive IFRS Group net income with a probability
of at least 90% p.a. Our solvency ratio must amount to at
least 180%, although 200% is already considered to be a
threshold; countermeasures would be triggered if the solven-
cy ratio were to fall below this threshold. These indicators are
monitored using our internal capital model and the Executive
Board is informed at least quarterly about adherence to these
key parameters as part of regular risk reporting. The neces-
sary equity resources are determined according to the re-
quirements of our economic capital model, regulatory param-
eters, the expectations of rating agencies with respect to our
target rating and the expectations of our clients.

Major external factors influencing
risk management

This section describes and evaluates external factors and
events from the first half of 2021 that had a particularly signif-
icant impact on risk management or could do so in the future.

Covid-19 pandemic: The Crisis Management Team set up in
2020 took various decisions to maintain regular business op-
erations, including in response to official measures. These
decisions encompassed an extensive reduction in travel, a
broad-based changeover to teleworking and the use of video-
conferences. These measures have proven successful and we
have not so far identified any material impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic on our operations. Initial planning is underway for
an orderly phased return to the company’s locations.

We continue to evaluate our financial strength and profitabil-
ity on a regular basis using stress tests and sensitivity analy-
ses and we take steps as needed to reduce risks or strengthen
our equity resources. The heaviest losses on the reinsurance
side stemmed from the coverage of business interruptions,
excess mortality, credit insurance and event cancellations.
Given that the pandemic is still ongoing, forecasts remain
subject to considerable uncertainty.

Tax reform: At the time of preparing the financial report, the
OECD is expected to announce its report on the adoption of a
revised framework for the international taxation rules govern-
ing multinational enterprises (MNEs). The package consists
of two pillars. Pillar One envisages an allocation of taxing
rights to markets where companies that meet certain size and
profitability requirements — which Hannover Re will likely ful-
fil — have business activities and earn profits, although it is
anticipated that financial services providers will be exempted
from the application of Pillar One. Pillar Two contains rules
governing the introduction of a global minimum corporate
tax rate. This includes the so-called Subject to Tax Rule
(STTR) governing the taxation of certain related party pay-
ments. In some instances this may present a risk for Han-
nover Re because we own subsidiaries in countries where the

tax rate is lower than the agreed minimum rate. Further risks
may be associated with the (potentially inconsistent and/or
further-reaching) national implementation of these rules.

Regulatory developments: Of considerable importance to
Hannover Re is the published proposal for a Corporate Sus-
tainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), which would amend
and heavily expand our non-financial reporting obligations
under the Non-Financial Disclosure Regulation (NFRD). The
CSRD requires companies to make available the data needed
by financial institutions to meet their obligations under the
Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) and the
Taxonomy Regulation.

Just as important are the technical standards relating to the
Taxonomy Regulation, which clarify the information that
must be disclosed about our Taxonomy-aligned business. In
connection with the Taxonomy Regulation the EU has adopt-
ed a Delegated Act defining the Technical Screening Criteria
(TSCs) for economic activities that can make a material con-
tribution to climate change mitigation and climate change
adaptation. The (so-called) Article 8 of the Taxonomy Regula-
tion elaborates in detail how the reporting duties of compa-
nies under the Taxonomy will work within the current frame-
work of non-financial reporting (NFRD —> CSRD) - in
particular, how the KPIs are to be calculated. Essentially,
companies will have to disclose the proportion of Taxono-
my-aligned and non-Taxonomy-aligned activities in their total
investments and total activities. For Hannover Re, this would
involve the splitting of underwriting premiums into certain
defined categories.

In its work programme for 2021 EIOPA has announced its
intention to harmonise the rules for market access to
third-country reinsurers as part of its supervisory conver-
gence plan. Should Europe decide in favour of restrictions,
there is a risk that this could lead to reciprocal actions by in-
ternational jurisdictions. This also applies to the United King-
dom, in respect of which a decision on Solvency II equiva-
lence has still to be taken.

EIOPA’s position on Solvency II has been communicated to
the European Commission, which is currently reviewing the
proposals. The Commission is expected to publish a draft leg-
islative package in the third quarter of 2021. This will be fol-
lowed by trilogue negotiations, the duration of which has still
to be determined. Multiple stakeholders are meeting with
representatives of the European Commission to discuss EIO-
PA’s proposals and express their concerns regarding the im-
plications for the proposed regulation. At a number of public
events the Commission has openly stated its willingness to
deviate from EIOPA’s recommendations.

In May 2021 EIOPA launched its 2021 insurance stress test,

which runs until the middle of August 2021. The 2021 stress
test focuses on a prolonged Covid-19 scenario — in a “lower
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for longer” interest rate environment. The scenario, devel-
oped in cooperation with the European Systemic Risk Board
(ESRB), will assess the impact of economic consequences of
the Covid-19 pandemic. The stress test will evaluate the im-
pacts on both the capital and the liquidity position of the un-
dertakings in scope.

EIOPA conducted and is again conducting over the course of
2021 several comparative studies on internal models in which
Hannover Re is participating. Aspects such as diversification,
the parameters and results of market risk models as well as
those of non-life underwriting risk models are compared. The
studies and their findings are intended to harmonise regula-
tory approaches in the EU and hence refine the supervision of
internal models by building on the existing tools. Among oth-
er things, there is a systemic risk that the results may exces-
sively restrict undertaking-specific approaches.

Risks from the processing of electronic data: Recent years
have seen the increasing emergence of risks relating to elec-
tronic data and systems. Hannover Re, in common with other
companies, is at risk of outside attacks on its own IT systems
and has put in place extensive safeqguards. Furthermore,
Hannover Re offers reinsurance coverage for risks connected
with electronic systems and data. The dynamic pace of devel-
opments in the context of digitalisation presents a particular
challenge for the assessment of such risks. The mapping of
cyber risks in the internal capital model is continuously im-
proved, with the result that more detailed management and
assessment of the cyber risk is now possible. The “silent cy-
ber” risk is included, although we have been able to reduce
the exposures through additional treaty wordings in the
course of 2020 and 2021.

Natural catastrophe risks and climate change: Climate
change, defined as naturally occurring or human-caused cli-
matic changes, and the associated impacts pose a significant
challenge for risk management. Recognition of a correlation
between CO, emissions and the warming of the earth’s atmo-
sphere/increased moisture in the atmosphere is now sup-
ported by scientific evidence. It is likely that the increased
storm activity, heatwaves and droughts, severe precipitation
events and floods of recent years can be attributed in part to
progressive global warming. Hannover Re cooperates with
partners to very closely monitor the implications of global
warming for extreme weather events so as to be able to factor
the insights gained into the models and the management of
risks. This already poses a significant macroeconomic risk to-
day and has wide-ranging implications for the (re)insurance
industry in common with many other sectors. As a meta-risk,
the consequences of climate change can - like other ESG
risks — affect various categories of our risk register. At the
same time, the implications of climate change represent the
most significant ESG risk for our company in relation to finan-
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cial sustainability and are therefore closely analysed, moni-
tored and controlled. The focus of our climate change risk
analysis is currently on changes in the frequency and severity
of natural catastrophes (physical risks) and on transitory
risks, especially in connection with investments. We also con-
tinuously monitor potential liability risks in this regard.

In 2021 Hannover Re was again impacted by natural catastro-
phe events such as winter storm Uri and other events in
various parts of the world (Europe, Australia). Particularly
noteworthy in the half-year under review were the aforemen-
tioned North American storm and the consequences of the
“winter freeze”.

Biometric risks: We closely monitor the development of our
mortality business (above all in the United States) as well as
our worldwide morbidity business at all times, especially with
an eye to the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Capital market environment: The general level of interest
rates is a major external influencing factor on the return that
can be generated from our investments. In this respect, inter-
est rates rose — in some instances sharply — both in the euro
area and in the US dollar and pound sterling markets in the
first quarter. Negative yields are being seen on euro area gov-
ernment bonds extending well beyond the 10-year maturity
point. Even though the US dollar and sterling markets have
since recorded renewed modest declines, we benefit from the
overall higher level in our new investments and reinvestment
activities. On the whole, though, interest rates remain on a
low level. Euro area bond yields, for example, were negative
beyond the 10-year maturity point. As a further factor, risk
premiums for emerging market bonds and lower-rated issu-
ers have decreased since the turn of the year, while remain-
ing very largely stable or at most showing slight declines in
other areas. Broadly speaking, the economic repercussions of
the Covid-19 pandemic continued to be substantially cush-
ioned on financial markets through fiscal and monetary policy
support. This was reinforced by the progress made so far with
vaccination campaigns and a slow easing in pent-up con-
sumption. In our assessment, gross domestic product on a
pre-crisis level is well within reach for the United States even
in the current year. As for the eurozone, this is our expecta-
tion for 2022. This impressive momentum is also reflected in
commodity and transportation costs, which in turn serve to
increase the general level of prices. Yet we do not share the
systematic inflation concerns of other market players because
we do not yet see any indications of structural inflation. We
are nevertheless tracking the situation closely with an eye to
opportunities that may present themselves.

Stock markets followed a steady, yet rather muted upward
trajectory — especially in the second quarter. Having partially
scaled back our equity allocation to make the most of market



opportunities in the first quarter, we therefore did not yet see
any adequate signals in the markets to prompt a rebuilding of
the equity allocation.

Overall, the expansionary policies pursued by central banks
in our main currency areas were absolutely consistent, albeit
with differing measures that varied in scope. We continue to
view these worldwide interventions by governments and cen-
tral banks with their enormous money supply as a not incon-
siderable challenge because in some ways they divorce the
financial world from the natural, reciprocal control mecha-
nisms of the financial markets and it is unclear to what extent
the current or future valuation levels are supported by funda-
mentals. We therefore await the outcome of central bank
meetings in the autumn with interest.

We continue to have exposure to the private equity market.
Fair value changes here tend to be less influenced by general
market conditions and more by company-specific evalua-
tions. The risks are therefore primarily associated with the
business model and profitability and to a lesser extent with
the interest rate component in a consideration of cash flow
forecasts. In the period under review, for example, we again
see the need to take write-downs on isolated assets not as a
reflection of a generally elevated risk in the market, but rather
in the context of the risk profile specific to this asset class and
set of company characteristics.

The significance of real estate risks remains substantial for us
owing to our consistent participation in this sector. We spread
these risks through broadly diversified investments in
high-quality markets around the world, with each investment
decision being preceded by extensive analyses of the relevant
property, manager and market.

As part of our liquidity management we have defined asset
holdings that have proven to be highly liquid — even in times
of financial stress such as the 2008 financial crisis. These
consist primarily of unrestricted German, UK and US govern-
ment bonds and are intended to assure our ability to meet fi-
nancial obligations even in the unlikely scenario of assumed
extreme events coinciding. This liquid asset reserve stood at
EUR 5.2 billion (previous year: EUR 5.5 billion) as at the bal-
ance sheet date. In addition, we manage the liquidity of the
portfolio by checking on each trading day the liquidity of the
instruments contained therein. These measures serve to ef-
fectively reduce the liquidity risk.

As far as our investments are concerned, we anticipate con-
tinuing elevated volatility on global capital markets in the im-
mediate future, although we also see this as an opportunity
and believe that we are appropriately prepared with our
current investment posture. For further information please
see the “Investments” section of the management report on
page 9 et seq.

Opportunity report

Speed is one of the qualities used to measure a successful
knowledge transfer. Quick solutions and staying one step
ahead of the competition is the name of the game. Hannover
Re searches systematically for new business opportunities in
order to generate sustainable growth and strengthen the
company’s profitable development. With a view to identifying
opportunities and successfully translating ideas into busi-
ness, Hannover Re adopts a number of closely related ap-
proaches in order to achieve holistic opportunity and risk
management. Of significance here is the interplay without
overlaps of the various functions within opportunity and risk
management, which is ensured by defined interfaces.

Key elements in Hannover Re’s business opportunity man-
agement include its various market-specific innovations in
the Life &Health and Property & Casualty reinsurance busi-
ness groups.

Trends affecting these business groups are systematically
identified and analysed with the support of external sources
and partners and the needs of our clients are anticipated
along the entire insurance-related value chain. New business
opportunities that promise access to innovative technologies
and enhance our appeal in the eyes of customers are specifi-
cally pinpointed. With this in mind, Hannover Re cultivates
relevant partnerships with accelerators, incubators, company
builders, start-ups and research institutes in order to boost
our competitiveness in the insurtech sector and the area of
digital solutions. Various competence centres have been set
up in the Hannover Re Group to evaluate the strategic and
technical significance of innovative new digital technologies.
They include an organisational unit that provides targeted
support for insurtechs as they build their digital business
models and develops appropriate reinsurance solutions,
thereby also generating new premium potential for the Group.
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Closing the protection gap

The economic costs of natural disasters have risen
sharply as catastrophes have grown in number and se-
verity. The heightened risk is primarily due to eco-
nomic development and population growth, a greater
concentration of assets in exposed regions and in-
creasingly also to climate change. The gap between
uninsured and insured losses is particularly large in
emerging and developing countries. Against this
backdrop, Hannover Re is stepping up its involvement
through cooperation with both the public sector and
private enterprise so as to further close the insurance
gap for protection against natural disasters — especial-
ly those that are climate-related — in developing and
emerging countries. By way of example, this is
achieved in selected exposed countries in the context
of the trilateral agreement between the Insurance De-
velopment Forum, the Federal Ministry for Economic
Cooperation and Development and the United Nations
Development Programme, by providing capacity for
the Natural Disaster Fund as well as for regional risk
pools against natural perils and through a number of
other programmes with a bearing on reinsurance.

Corporate culture and entrepreneurship are increasingly
coming into focus as further elements of the innovation land-
scape.

The dynamic networking of the members of staff active in the
field of innovation at Hannover Re gives rise to close links
with other projects, working groups and bodies, such as with
the working group on “Emerging Risks und Scientific Affairs”
in regard to emerging risks and opportunities. This working
group carries out qualitative assessments of emerging risks.
As a result, however, not only are the potential risks explored
but also any available business opportunities. In the first half
of 2021, issues such as “Demographics” and “Social Media”,
among others, were analysed by the working group, which
stays in close contact with executive committees on the
underwriting side. In this way, analyses can be conducted to
counter new types of emerging risks and potential reinsur-
ance solutions can be devised.

If a business idea is translated into reality and a new reinsur-
ance product results, the normal procedure — provided the
criteria defined for this purpose by Risk Management are
applicable — is to work through the so-called new product
process. This process is supported by Risk Management at
Hannover Re. The process is always worked through if a
contractual commitment is to be entered into in a form not
previously used by Hannover Re or if a new type of risk is to
be insured. If this is the case, all material internal and exter-
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nal influencing factors are examined beforehand by Risk
Management (e.g. implications for the overall risk profile or
the risk strategy) and evaluated. Risk Management ensures
that before it can be used or sold a new reinsurance product
must be approved by the Executive Board.

Overall assessment by the Executive
Board

Based on our currently available insights arrived at from a
holistic analysis of the opportunities and risks, the Executive
Board of Hannover Re cannot discern any risks that could
jeopardise the continued existence of the Hannover Re Group
in the short or medium term or have a material and lasting
effect on its assets, financial position or net income. We are
convinced that:

* our established system of risk management affords us
a transparent overview of the current risk situation at
all times,

e our overall risk profile and the risk management
system put in place on this basis are appropriate, and

* our business opportunity management plays an
important part in Hannover Re’s profitable growth.

As an internationally operating reinsurance group, we move
in a highly complex environment. Nevertheless, thanks to our
business activities in all lines of reinsurance we are able to
achieve optimal risk spreading through geographical and
risk-specific diversification while at the same time maintain-
ing a balanced opportunity/risk profile. We consider the de-
scribed risks to be manageable, particularly because our
steering and monitoring measures are effectively and closely
interlinked. Despite these diverse mechanisms, individual
and especially accumulation risks can decisively affect our
assets, financial position and net income. In accordance with
our understanding of risk, however, we consider not only
risks but also at the same time opportunities. We therefore
only enter into those risks that go hand-in-hand with
opportunities. Our steering and monitoring tools as well as
our organisational and operational structure ensure that we
identify risks at an early stage and are able to act on our
opportunities. Our central monitoring tool is the system of
risk management that we have installed Group-wide, which
brings together both qualitative and quantitative information
for effective tracking of risks. Most notably, the interplay
between domestic and foreign risk management functions
affords us a holistic and Group-wide overview.



Our own evaluation of the manageability of existing risks is
confirmed by various financial indicators and external assess-
ments. Specific monitoring indicators, notification thresholds
and potential escalation steps are defined on a mandatory ba-
sis in our central system of limits and thresholds for the ma-
terial risks of the Hannover Re Group. As a result, the system
provides us with a precise overview of potentially undesirable
developments in the defined risk tolerances and enables us to
react in a timely manner. One testament to our financial sta-
bility, for example, is the growth of our shareholders’ equity:
the total policyholders’ surplus (hybrid capital, non-con-
trolling interests and shareholders’ equity) stands at 202% of
the corresponding figure from 2011. In this context, our nec-
essary equity resources are determined by the requirements
of our economic capital model, solvency regulations, the as-
sumptions of rating agencies with respect to our target rating
and the expectations of our clients and shareholders. This
increase gives us a sufficient capital cushion to be able both
to absorb risks and act on business opportunities that may
arise. Similarly, our very good financial strength ratings also
testify to our financial stability. The quality of our Enterprise

Risk Management (ERM), for example, is assessed by Stan-
dard § Poor’s as a key factor in the rating process. Special
consideration is given to our established risk management
culture, which promotes the development of appropriate risk
monitoring systems and supports strategic risk management.
The rating encompasses in particular the areas of risk culture,
risk controls, emerging risk management, risk models and
strategic risk management. This external appraisal confirms
the quality of our holistic approach to risk management.

In addition, the risk trigger mechanism and internal monitor-
ing system are reviewed annually by the independent auditor

in relation to the financial reporting.

The Group-wide risk management system is also a regular
part of the audits conducted by the internal audit function.
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Outlook for 2021

Forecast

» Gross premium for the Group expected to post growth in the upper single-digit percentages at

constant exchange rates
* Return on investment of around 2.4% targeted
+ Combined ratio not to exceed 96%

* Group net income guidance of EUR 1.15 billion to EUR 1.25 billion for 2021 confirmed

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to set the tone for global
reinsurance markets in the current financial year.

In property and casualty reinsurance, however, it is our as-
sumption that the pandemic-related reserves established in
2020 are still adequate overall. We therefore anticipate a
combined ratio of no more than 96% in the current financial
year. This is further supported by the successful treaty renew-
als in the current financial year, which to some extent will
already be reflected in improved profitability prospects in
2021 as well as in subsequent years.

In life and health reinsurance, the future pandemic-related
loss experience will be dependent on the success of ongoing
vaccination campaigns around the world, further contain-
ment efforts and the possible implications of virus variants. It
is our expectation that our additional strains will therefore
diminish accordingly in the second half of the year.

All in all, we consider ourselves well placed to achieve our
guidance for the current financial year. The anticipated return
on investment remains unchanged at around 2.4% and we
expect growth in Group gross premium in the upper
single-digit percentages adjusted for exchange rate effects.
On the Group level we still anticipate net income of
EUR 1.15 billion to EUR 1.25 billion for the 2021 financial
year.
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Achievement of the earnings guidance is dependent on major
loss expenditure not significantly exceeding the budgeted
level of EUR 1.1 billion and assumes that there are no unfore-
seen downturns on capital markets.

Following the end of the second quarter parts of Germany,
Belgium, the Netherlands, Switzerland and Austria were dev-
astated by heavy rainfall and flooding. For the second half of
the year we are also already seeing indications of losses from
the riots in South Africa. Further details are provided in sec-
tion 8.6. “Events after the end of the reporting period”.

Our dividend policy remains unchanged. Hannover Re envis-
ages a payout ratio for the ordinary dividend in the range of
35% to 45% of IFRS Group net income. The ordinary divi-
dend will be supplemented by payment of a special dividend
subject to a comfortable level of capitalisation and Group net
income within the bounds of expectations.
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2021

Assets

in EUR thousand 31.12.2020"
Fixed-income securities — held to maturity 122,502 185,577
Fixed-income securities — loans and receivables 2,417,429 2,312,840
Fixed-income securities — available for sale 42,173,861 38,851,723
Fixed-income securities — at fair value through profit or loss 72,599 105,711
Equity securities — available for sale 294,896 378,422
Other financial assets — at fair value through profit or loss 195,783 234,689
Investment property 1,615,554 1,589,238
Real estate funds 657,817 582,296
Investments in associated companies 378,822 361,617
Other invested assets 3,058,285 2,794,016
Short-term investments 415,046 327,426
Cash and cash equivalents 1,445,138 1,278,071
Total investments and cash under own management 52,847,732 49,001,626
Funds withheld 10,384,676 9,659,807
Contract deposits 333,651 298,344
Total investments 63,566,059 58,959,777
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid claims 1,860,654 1,883,270
Reinsurance recoverables on benefit reserve 198,401 192,135
Prepaid reinsurance premium 269,873 165,916
Reinsurance recoverables on other technical reserves 1,255 1,106
Deferred acquisition costs 3,505,784 3,073,117
Accounts receivable 7,198,300 5,605,803
Goodwill 83,420 80,965
Deferred tax assets 586,779 597,986
Other assets 809,155 859,136
Accrued interest and rent 19,566 18,264
Total assets 78,099,246 71,437,475

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Liabilities

in EUR thousand EE 31.12.2020°
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve 36,651,416 33,929,230
Benefit reserve 7,434,973 7,217,988
Unearned premium reserve 6,894,663 5,070,009
Other technical provisions 761,063 701,577
Funds withheld 643,216 582,316
Contract deposits 3,571,560 3,255,453
Reinsurance payable 2,067,340 1,777,761
Provisions for pensions 209,726 229,252
Taxes 167,400 132,736
Deferred tax liabilities 2,749,826 2,731,648
Other liabilities 887,991 538,813
Financing liabilities 4,177,745 3,431,276
Total liabilities 66,216,919 59,598,059
Shareholders’ equity

Common shares 120,597 120,597

Nominal value: 120,597
Conditional capital: 24,119

Additional paid-in capital 724,562 724,562
Common shares and additional paid-in capital 845,159 845,159
Cumulative other comprehensive income

Unrealised gains and losses on investments 1,888,838 2,275,936

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment (25,625) (330,693)

Changes from hedging instruments (10,718) (8,678)

Other changes in cumulative other comprehensive income (72,502) (83,792)

Total other comprehensive income 1,779,993 1,852,773
Retained earnings 8,425,448 8,297,114
Equity attributable to shareholders of Hannover Riick SE 11,050,600 10,995,046
Non-controlling interests 831,727 844,370
Total shareholders’ equity 11,882,327 11,839,416
Total liabilities 78,099,246 71,437,475

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Consolidated statement of income

as at 30 June 2021

in EUR thousand 30.6.2021 30.6.2021 30.6.2020 30.6.2020
Gross written premium 6,655,335 14,464,599 6,170,847 13,146,136
Ceded written premium 721,499 1,384,543 590,057 1,213,743
Change in gross unearned premium (155,029) (1,662,374) (290,593) (1,628,703)
Change in ceded unearned premium 43,784 97,616 (2,972) 74,394

Net premium earned 5,822,591 11,515,298 5,287,225 10,378,084

Ordinary investment income 371,463 681,701 281,401 607,661
Profit/loss from investments in associated companies 3,807 16,019 5 6,431
Realised gains and losses on investments 51,839 142,021 37,961 139,825
Change in fair value of financial instruments 6,558 (43,141) 39,004 50,648
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of investments 17,318 38,372 56,532 85,101
Other investment expenses 33,254 64,578 31,105 62,659
Net income from investments under own management 383,095 693,650 270,734 656,805
Income/expense on funds withheld and contract deposits 41,650 172,151 50,691 136,278
Net investment income 424,745 865,801 321,425 793,083
Other technical income 50 112 - -

Total revenues 6,247,386 12,381,211 5,608,650 11,171,167
Claims and claims expenses 4,244,768 8,630,539 4,273,343 8,198,297
Change in benefit reserves (61,214) (113,501) (60,693) (145,482)
Commission and brokerage, change in deferred acquisition costs 1,448,401 2,785,581 1,281,082 2,546,594
Other acquisition costs 1,154 2,243 1,273 2,376
Administrative expenses 132,326 258,435 128,450 242,944
Total technical expenses 5,765,435 11,563,297 5,623,455 10,844,729

Other income 134,650 396,181 110,647 399,980
Other expenses 64,328 257,988 18,978 222,909
Other income/expenses 70,322 138,193 91,669 177,071

Operating profit (EBIT) 552,273 956,107 76,864 503,509
Financing costs 21,405 40,125 23,643 47,104

Net income before taxes 530,868 915,982 53,221 456,405
Taxes 146,296 212,145 (42,688) 51,464

Net income 384,572 703,837 95,909 404,941
thereof

Non-controlling interest in profit and loss 19,913 33,285 (5,566) 2,589
Group net income 364,659 670,552 101,475 402,352

Earnings per share (in EUR)

Basic earnings per share 3.02 5.56 0.85 3.34
Diluted earnings per share 3.02 5.56 0.85 3.34
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as at 30 June 2021

1.4.- 1.1.- 1.4.- 1.1.—

in EUR thousand 30.6.2021 30.6.2021 30.6.2020 30.6.2020

Net income 384,572 703,837 95,909 404,941
Not reclassifiable to the consolidated statement of income

Actuarial gains and losses

Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity 3,952 18,515 (19,566) 4,384
Tax income (expense) (1,282) (6,041) 6,372 (1,418)
2,670 12,474 (13,194) 2,966

Changes from the measurement of associated companies
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity = 134 (76) 22
= 134 (76) 22

Income and expense recognised directly in equity that cannot
be reclassified

Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity 3,952 18,649 (19,642) 4,406
Tax income (expense) (1,282) (6,041) 6,372 (1,418)
2,670 12,608 (13,270) 2,988

Reclassifiable to the consolidated statement of income

Unrealised gains and losses on investments

Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity 432,621 (418,472) 1,271,588 728,655
Transferred to the consolidated statement of income (46,627) (128,818) 1,256 (66,052)
Tax income (expense) (80,046) 153,403 (326,904) (126,221)
305,948 (393,887) 945,940 536,382
Currency translation
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity (120,110) 355,111 (121,505) (129,466)
Tax income (expense) 12,174 (45,838) 6,758 20,013
(107,936) 309,273 (114,747) (109,453)
Changes from the measurement of associated companies
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity (2,562) (55) 3,785 34
(2,562) (55) 3,785 34
Changes from hedging instruments
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity (4,662) (2,398) 3,145 (4,167)
Tax income (expense) 1,333 388 (1,736) 1,931
(3,329) (2,010) 1,409 (2,236)
Reclassifiable income and expense recognised directly in equity
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity 305,287 (65,814) 1,157,013 595,056
Transferred to the consolidated statement of income (46,627) (128,818) 1,256 (66,052)
Tax income (expense) (66,539) 107,953 (321,882) (104,277)
192,121 (86,679) 836,387 424,727
Total income and expense recognised directly in equity
Gains (losses) recognised directly in equity 309,239 (47,165) 1,137,371 599,462
Transferred to the consolidated statement of income (46,627) (128,818) 1,256 (66,052)
Tax income (expense) (67,821) 101,912 (315,510) (105,695)
194,791 (74,071) 823,117 427,715
Total recognised income and expense 579,363 629,766 919,026 832,656
thereof
Attributable to non-controlling interests 29,004 31,994 32,577 9,707
Attributable to shareholders of Hannover Riick SE 550,359 597,772 886,449 822,949

23



Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

as at 30 June 2021

Common shares Additional Other reserves
paid-in capital (cumulative other
comprehensive income)
Unrealised Currency
in EUR thousand gains/losses translation
Balance as at 1.1.2020 120,597 724,562 1,287,907 385,153
Net income - - - -
Total income and expense recognised
directly in equity - - 528,647 (108,564)
Total recognised income and expense - - 528,647 (108,564)
Dividends paid - - - -
Changes in ownership interest with
no change of control status - - - -
Capital increases/additions - - - -
Capital repayments - - - -
Acquisition/disposal of treasury shares - - - -
Balance as at 30.6.2020 120,597 724,562 1,816,554 276,589
Balance as at 1.1.2021 120,597 724,562 2,275,936 (330,693)
Net income - - - -
Total income and expense recognised
directly in equity - - (387,098) 305,068
Total recognised income and expense - - (387,098) 305,068
Dividends paid - - - -
Changes in ownership interest with
no change of control status - - - -
Capital increases/additions - - - -
Capital repayments - - - -
Acquisition/disposal of treasury shares - - - -
Balance as a 30.6.2021 120,597 724,562 1,888,838 (25,625)
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Continuation: Other reserves Retained Equity attributable Non-controlling Total shareholders’

(cumulative other earnings to shareholders of interests equity
comprehensive income) Hannover Ruck SE

Hedging Other
instruments

(1,276) (66,077) 8,077,123 10,527,989 826,490 11,354,479

- - 402,352 402,352 2,589 404,941

(2,187) 2,701 - 420,597 7,118 427,715

(2,187) 2,701 402,352 822,949 9,707 832,656

- - (663,284) (663,284) (44,560) (707,844)

- - 86 86 (19) 67

- - - - 4 4

- - - - (30) (30)

- - (33) (33) - (33)

(3,463) (63,376) 7,816,244 10,687,707 791,592 11,479,299

(8,678) (83,792) 8,297,114 10,995,046 844,370 11,839,416

- - 670,552 670,552 33,285 703,837

(2,040) 11,290 - (72,780) (1,291 (74,071)

(2,040) 11,290 670,552 597,772 31,994 629,766

- - (542,687) (542,687) (44,817) (587,504)

- - 518 518 191 709

- - - - 10 10

- - - - (21 (VAD]

- - (49) (49) - (49)

(10,718) (72,502) 8,425,448 11,050,600 831,727 11,882,327

25



Consolidated cash flow statement as at 30 June 2021

in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020

I.  Cash flow from operating activities
Net income 703,837 404,941
Appreciation/depreciation 61,580 98,042
Realised gains and losses on investments (142,021) (139,825)
Change in fair value of financial instruments (through profit or loss) 43,141 (50,648)
Amortisation 35,037 44,828
Changes in funds withheld (380,723) (277,637)
Changes in contract deposits 215,689 (169,010)
Changes in prepaid reinsurance premium 1,564,758 1,554,309
Change in tax assets/provisions for taxes 227,647 (104,284)
Change in benefit reserve (51,556) (99,525)
Changes in claims reserves 1,951,805 1,680,458
Change in deferred acquisition costs (354,459) (207,148)
Change in other technical provisions 44,501 26,237
Change in accounts receivable/payable (1,218,145) (1,062,140)
Change in other assets and liabilities (20,702) (27,477)
Cash flow from operating activities 2,680,389 1,671,121
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in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020
Il. Cash flow from investing activities
Fixed-income securities — held to maturity
Maturities 62,265 5,041
Fixed-income securities — loans and receivables
Maturities, sales 74,441 82,734
Purchases (138,170) (468,755)
Fixed-income securities — available for sale
Maturities, sales 7,831,443 6,644,095

Purchases

(10,929,425)

(6,760,414)

Fixed-income securities — at fair value through profit or loss

Maturities, sales 37,171 156,016

Purchases = (190,588)
Equity securities — available for sale

Sales 147,337 5,504

Purchases (17,144) (268,088)
Other financial assets — at fair value through profit or loss

Sales 36,360 64,610

Purchases (24,590) (63,163)
Other invested assets

Sales 319,382 826,798

Purchases (331,550) (974,110)
Affiliated companies and participating interests

Sales 5,181 103

Purchases (12,710) (30,981)
Real estate and real estate funds

Sales 27,558 78,580

Purchases (100,198) (108,278)
Short-term investments

Changes (76,554) 66,229
Other changes (net) 387,269 71,474
Cash flow from investing activities (2,701,934) (863,193)
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EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020

I1l. Cash flow from financing activities
Contribution from capital measures 10 4
Payment on capital measures (21) (30)
Structural change without loss of control 709 67
Dividends paid (587,504) (707,844)
Proceeds from long-term debts 743,749 869
Repayment of long-term debts (14,645) (6,988)
Other changes (49) (33)
Cash flow from financing activities 142,249 (713,955)

IV. Exchange rate differences on cash 46,363 (26,792)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,278,071 1,090,852
Change in cash and cash equivalents (I. + Il + I1I. + IV.) 167,067 67,181
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,445,138 1,158,033
Thereof cash and cash equivalents of the disposal group = 3,684
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period excluding the disposal group 1,445,138 1,154,349
Supplementary information on the cash flow statement’
Income taxes paid (on balance) (8,664) (135,172)
Dividend receipts? 141,990 59,173
Interest received 830,814 820,037
Interest paid (254,234) (131,979)
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Notes

1. General reporting principles

Hannover Riick SE and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Hannover Re Group” or “Hannover Re”) are 50.2%
(rounded) owned by Talanx AG and included in its consolidat-
ed financial statement. Talanx AG is majority-owned by HDI
Haftpflichtverband der Deutschen Industrie V.a.G. (HDI).
Hannover Re is obliged to prepare a consolidated financial
statement and group management report in accordance with
§ 290 German Commercial Code (HGB). Furthermore, HDI is
required by §8 341 i et seq. German Commercial Code (HGB)
to prepare consolidated annual accounts that include the
annual financial statements of Hannover Riick SE and its
subsidiaries. Hannover Rick SE is a European Company,
Societas Europaea (SE), and its registered office is located at
Karl-Wiechert-Allee 50, 30625 Hannover, Germany.

The consolidated financial statement of Hannover Re was
drawn up in compliance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are to be used within the
European Union. This also applies to all figures provided in
this report for previous periods.

As provided for by IAS 34, in our preparation of the
consolidated quarterly financial statement, consisting of the

consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of in-
come, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flow statement, consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity and selected explanatory
notes, we draw on estimates and assumptions to a greater
extent than is the case with the annual financial reporting.
This can have implications for items in the balance sheet and
the statement of income as well as for other financial obliga-
tions. Although the estimates are always based on realistic
premises, they are of course subject to uncertainties that may
be reflected accordingly in the result. Losses from natural di-
sasters and other catastrophic losses impact the result of the
reporting period in which they occur. Furthermore, belatedly
reported claims for major loss events can also lead to sub-
stantial fluctuations in individual quarterly results. Gains and
losses on the disposal of investments are accounted for in the
quarter in which the investments are sold.

The present consolidated quarterly financial statement was
prepared by the Executive Board on 30 July 2021 and re-
leased for publication.

2. Accounting principles including major accounting policies

The quarterly accounts of the consolidated companies includ-
ed in the consolidated financial statement were drawn up as
at 30 June 2021.

The consolidated half-yearly financial report was compiled in
accordance with IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”. Con-
sequently, the accounting policies adopted in the period
under review were the same as those applied in the preceding
consolidated annual financial statement. For more details of

Accounting standards applied for the first time
With the entry into force on 1 January 2021 of “Amendments
to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — Deferral of IFRS 9”7, manda-
tory initial application of IFRS 9 for insurance and reinsur-
ance undertakings has been deferred by a further year to
1 January 2023. We would refer the reader to our remarks in
the following subsection and to the Group annual financial
report of the previous year.

In addition, the amendments to existing standards indicated
below were applicable for the first time in the reporting
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the accounting policies please see the Group annual financial
report for the previous year.

All standards adopted by the IASB as at 30 June 2021 with
binding effect for the period under review have been ob-
served in the consolidated financial statement.

period and had no significant implications for the consolidat-
ed financial statement:

e Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

* Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions



Standards or changes in standards that have not yet entered into force or are not yet applicable

Hannover Re continues to meet the requirements for applica-
tion of “Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts (Amendments to IFRS 4)”, which was
published in September 2016, regarding temporary deferral
of IFRS 9. The deferral approach allows for a temporary ex-
emption from recognising financial instruments in accor-
dance with IFRS 9 until probable entry into force of IFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts” on 1 January 2023. For further explan-
atory remarks on the implications of application of IFRS 9 as
well as [FRS 17, we would refer to the Group annual financial
report for the previous year.

Furthermore, the IASB has issued the following amendments
to existing standards, application of which was not yet man-
datory in the reporting period. Hannover Re is refraining from
early application of these amendments, which are not expect-
ed to have any significant implications for the Group’s net
assets, financial position or results of operations.

Key exchange rates

The individual companies’ statements of income prepared in
the respective functional currency are converted into euro at
the average rates of exchange and transferred to the consoli-
dated financial statement. The conversion of foreign currency

Key exchange rates

L]

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of
Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Annual Improvements 2018-2020

items in the balance sheets of the individual companies and
the transfer of these items to the consolidated financial state-
ment are effected at the mean rates of exchange on the
balance sheet date.

30.6.2021

Mean rate of exchange
on the balance sheet date

1 EUR corresponds to:

31.12.2020 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020

Average rate of exchange

AUD 1.5846 1.6030 1.5725 1.6709
BHD 0.4484 0.4634 0.4548 0.4173
CAD 1.4728 1.5704 1.5092 1.5045
CNY 7.6805 8.0199 7.8006 7.7768
GBP 0.8578 0.9041 0.8708 0.8737
HKD 9.2375 9.5286 9.3631 8.5840
INR 88.4115 90.1030 88.5638 81.5606
KRW 1,339.4800 1,335.8500 1,345.9000 1,330.5086
MYR 4.9346 4.9613 4.9342 4.6835
SEK 10.1135 10.0560 10.1333 10.6426
usbD 1.1894 1.2291 1.2064 1.1054
ZAR 17.0025 18.0114 17.5632 18.2181
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3. Change in accounting policies

In the 2020 consolidated financial statement components of a
structured transaction in the life reinsurance segment were
presented separately under the investments and the technical
items. After fresh, in-depth analysis of the contractual details
of the transaction, however, we consider a combined view of
the components of the transaction entirely within the techni-
cal items of the balance sheet from the perspective of the
Hannover Re Group as unified reporting subject matter to be

Restatements pursuant to IAS 8

a more appropriate presentation for providing reliable and
relevant information with respect to the financial implications
of the transaction.

The effects of this change on the individual items of the con-
solidated balance sheet are shown in the following table.
There were no implications for Group net income.

in EUR thousand 31.12.2020
Consolidated balance sheet

Fixed-income securities — loans and receivables (219,306)
Deferred acquisition costs 216,046
Other assets 966
Other liabilities (2,294)

4. Consolidated companies and consolidation principles

Capital consolidation

The capital consolidation is carried out according to the re-
quirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
on the basis of a consistent consolidation model for all enti-
ties that identifies control as the single basis for verifying the
consolidation requirement, irrespective of whether control is
substantiated in company law, contractually or economically.
Group companies are consolidated from the point in time
when Hannover Re gains control over them. Control exists if
Hannover Re directly or indirectly has decision-making pow-
er over a Group company on the basis of voting rights or oth-
er rights, if it has exposure or rights to positive and negative
variable returns from its involvement with the Group compa-
ny and if it can use its power to influence these returns. All of
these criteria must be met. Other circumstances may also
give rise to control, for example the existence of a princi-
pal-agent relationship. In this case a party outside the Group
with decision-making powers (agent) acts for Hannover Re,
but does not control the company since it merely exercises
decision-making powers that have been delegated by
Hannover Re (principal). In the context of their operational
activities some companies belonging to the Hannover Re
Group enter into business relations with structured entities
that are also to be examined in accordance with IFRS 10 in
conjunction with IFRS 12 with an eye to their implications for
consolidation. Structured entities are entities designed in
such a way that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
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factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. Consolidation decisions are reviewed as
necessary and at least once a year. Group companies are
consolidated until the Hannover Re Group loses control over
them. The accounting policies of Group companies are
adjusted, where necessary, in order to ensure consistent
application of the Hannover Re Group’s accounting policies.
The capital consolidation is based on the acquisition method.
In the context of the acquisition method the acquisition costs,
measured at the fair value of the consideration rendered by
the parent company on the acquisition date, are netted with
the proportionate shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary at
the time when it is first included in the consolidated financial
statement after the revaluation of all assets and liabilities.
After recognition of all acquired intangible assets that in
accordance with IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are to be
accounted for separately from goodwill, the difference be-
tween the revalued shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary and
the purchase price is recognised as goodwill. Under IFRS 3
goodwill is not amortised, but instead impairment is taken
where necessary on the basis of annual impairment tests.
Immaterial and negative goodwill are recognised in the
statement of income in the year of their occurrence. Costs
associated with acquisition are expensed.



Companies over which Hannover Re is able to exercise a sig-
nificant influence are consolidated as associated companies
using the equity method of accounting with the proportion of
the shareholders’ equity attributable to the Group. A signifi-
cant influence is presumed to exist if a company belonging to
the Hannover Re Group directly or indirectly holds at least
20% — but no more than 50% - of the voting rights. We also
derive evidence of significant influence over an associated
company from representation on a governing body of such
company, participation in its policy-making processes — e.g.
with respect to dividends or other distributions —, the exis-
tence of material inter-company transactions, the possibility
of interchanging managerial personnel or the provision of key
technical information for the company. Income from invest-

ments in associated companies is recognised separately in
the consolidated statement of income.

Non-controlling interests in shareholders’ equity are reported
separately within Group shareholders’ equity in accordance
with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The
non-controlling interest in profit or loss, which forms part of
net income and is shown separately after net income as a
“thereof” note, amounted to EUR 33.3 million (EUR 2.6 mil-
lion) as at 30 June 2021.

For further details we would refer to the relevant information
in the Group annual financial report as at 31 December 2020.

Consolidation of business transactions within the Group

Receivables and liabilities between the companies included
in the consolidated financial statement are offset against each
other. Profits and expenses from business transactions within
the Group are also eliminated.

Major acquisitions and new formations
No major acquisitions and no new formations have taken
place in the current financial year.

Major disposals

No major disposals have taken place in the current financial
year.
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Transactions between a disposal group and the continuing
operations of the Group are similarly eliminated in accor-
dance with IFRS 10.
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5. Group segment report

Segmentation of assets

Property and casualty reinsurance

in EUR thousand 31.12.2020"
Assets

Fixed-income securities — held to maturity 100,109 139,867
Fixed-income securities — loans and receivables 2,071,225 1,998,611
Fixed-income securities — available for sale 32,009,122 29,422,685
Equity securities — available for sale 294,896 378,422
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 85,027 110,304
Other invested assets 4,772,830 4,384,139
Short-term investments 273,362 244,474
Cash and cash equivalents 1,027,681 901,989
Total investments and cash under own management 40,634,252 37,580,491
Funds withheld 3,154,532 2,569,420
Contract deposits 3,216 5,404
Total investments 43,792,000 40,155,315
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid claims 1,709,002 1,730,507
Reinsurance recoverables on benefit reserve - -
Prepaid reinsurance premium 269,725 165,834
Reinsurance recoverables on other technical reserves 528 562
Deferred acquisition costs 1,613,544 1,169,521
Accounts receivable 5,568,267 4,155,372
Other assets in the segment 3,338,973 2,788,243
Total assets 56,292,039 50,165,354
Segmentation of liabilities

in EUR thousand

Liabilities

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve 31,410,006 29,194,354
Benefit reserve = -
Unearned premium reserve 6,487,584 4,709,229
Provisions for contingent commissions 459,268 395,296
Funds withheld 390,599 342,420
Contract deposits 81,218 80,369
Reinsurance payable 1,420,582 1,157,650
Financing liabilities 422,211 420,348
Other liabilities in the segment 2,907,195 2,478,161
Total liabilities 43,578,663 38,777,827

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Life and health reinsurance Consolidation Total

30.6.2021 31.12.2020" 30.6.2021 31.12.2020" 30.6.2021 31.12.2020"

22,393 45,710 = - 122,502 185,577
330,708 299,180 15,496 15,049 2,417,429 2,312,840
10,146,024 9,429,038 18,715 - 42,173,861 38,851,723
= - = - 294,896 378,422

183,355 230,096 = - 268,382 340,400
934,047 920,960 3,601 22,068 5,710,478 5,327,167
141,152 82,221 532 731 415,046 327,426
414,203 371,972 3,254 4,110 1,445,138 1,278,071
12,171,882 11,379,177 41,598 41,958 52,847,732 49,001,626
7,230,144 7,090,387 = - 10,384,676 9,659,807
330,435 292,940 = - 333,651 298,344
19,732,461 18,762,504 41,598 41,958 63,566,059 58,959,777
151,652 152,763 = - 1,860,654 1,883,270
198,401 192,135 = - 198,401 192,135
305 82 (157) - 269,873 165,916

727 544 = - 1,255 1,106
1,892,240 1,903,596 = - 3,505,784 3,073,117
1,630,033 1,450,628 = (197) 7,198,300 5,605,803
509,981 470,282 (2,350,034) (1,702,174) 1,498,920 1,556,351
24,115,800 22,932,534 (2,308,593) (1,660,413) 78,099,246 71,437,475
5,241,410 4,734,876 = - 36,651,416 33,929,230
7,434,973 7,217,988 = - 7,434,973 7,217,988
407,079 360,780 = - 6,894,663 5,070,009
301,795 306,281 = - 761,063 701,577
252,617 239,896 = - 643,216 582,316
3,490,342 3,175,084 = - 3,571,560 3,255,453
647,072 620,111 (314) - 2,067,340 1,777,761
33,964 35,010 3,721,570 2,975,918 4,177,745 3,431,276
3,464,341 2,863,934 (2,356,593) (1,709,646) 4,014,943 3,632,449
21,273,593 19,553,960 1,364,663 1,266,272 66,216,919 59,598,059
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Segment statement of income Property and casualty reinsurance

in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020
Gross written premium 10,266,540 9,174,203
Net premium earned 7,846,643 6,869,071
Net investment income 584,386 458,693
thereof
Change in fair value of financial instruments 4,133 (1,304)
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of investments 38,356 83,273
Income/expense on funds withheld and contract deposits 14,705 25,524
Claims and claims expenses 5,272,484 5,009,822
Change in benefit reserve = -
Commission and brokerage, change in deferred acquisition costs and
other technical income/expenses 2,146,392 1,934,217
Administrative expenses 125,718 111,286
Other income and expenses (108,530) 17,577
Operating profit/loss (EBIT) 777,905 290,016
Financing costs 1,035 1,068
Net income before taxes 776,870 288,948
Taxes 152,522 42,661
Net income 624,348 246,287
thereof
Non-controlling interest in profit or loss 32,261 1,553
Group net income 592,087 244,734

The segment information shown here is based on the same
principles as those applied in the consolidated financial state-
ment as at 31 December 2020. It follows the system used for
internal reporting purposes, on the basis of which the full
Executive Board regularly evaluates the performance of
segments and decides on the allocation of resources to them.
The “Consolidation” column includes not only the elimination
of cross-segment transactions but also, more significantly,
companies whose business operations cannot be unambigu-
ously allocated to property and casualty reinsurance or life
and health reinsurance. These are principally the service and
financing companies belonging to the Group. Since the per-
formance indicators used to steer the segments correspond
to the system according to which the consolidated financial
statement is prepared, a separate reconciliation of the seg-
ment results with the Group result is not provided. We would
also refer to the relevant information in the Group annual
financial report as at 31 December 2020.

In the current financial year there have been no material
changes in the consolidated group.
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Life and health reinsurance Consolidation Total

1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020 1.1.-30.6.2021 1.1.-30.6.2020

4,198,059 3,971,933 = - 14,464,599 13,146,136
3,668,500 3,508,896 155 117 11,515,298 10,378,084
280,667 332,940 748 1,450 865,801 793,083
(47,274) 51,952 = - (43,141 50,648
16 1,828 = - 38,372 85,101
157,446 110,754 = - 172,151 136,278
3,358,055 3,188,475 = - 8,630,539 8,198,297
(113,501) (145,482) = - (113,501) (145,482)
641,320 614,753 = - 2,787,712 2,548,970
132,937 131,390 (220) 268 258,435 242,944
248,706 161,451 (1,983) (1,957) 138,193 177,071
179,062 214,151 (860) (658) 956,107 503,509
767 752 38,323 45,284 40,125 47,104
178,295 213,399 (39,183) (45,942) 915,982 456,405
72,508 23,958 (12,885) (15,155) 212,145 51,464
105,787 189,441 (26,298) (30,787) 703,837 404,941
1,024 1,036 = - 33,285 2,589
104,763 188,405 (26,298) (30,787) 670,552 402,352
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6. Notes on the individual items of the balance sheet

6.1. Investments under own management
Investments are classified and measured in accordance with
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment”. Hannover Re classifies investments according to the
following categories: held-to-maturity, loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and avail-
able-for-sale. The allocation and measurement of investments
are determined by the investment intent.

The investments under own management also encompass in-
vestments in associated companies, real estate and real es-
tate funds (also includes: investment property), other invest-
ed assets, short-term investments as well as cash and cash
equivalents. Real estate as well as investments held by dis-

posal groups which are intended for sale as defined by I[FRS 5
are recognised separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
Intentions to sell are substantiated by individual real estate
market conditions and specific property circumstances, tak-
ing into consideration current and future opportunity/risk
profiles.

For further details we would refer to the relevant information
in the Group annual financial report as at 31 December 2020.

The following table shows the regional origin of the invest-
ments under own management.

Investments

in EUR thousand 30.6.2021 31.12.2020"
Regional origin

Germany 7,448,435 8,206,449
United Kingdom 3,653,584 3,673,652
France 2,015,542 1,439,647
Other 7,655,432 6,814,913
Europe 20,772,993 20,134,661
USA 17,791,162 15,621,305
Other 2,652,979 2,364,724
North America 20,444,141 17,986,029
Asia 5,617,546 5,044,810
Australia 2,930,352 2,982,749
Australasia 8,547,898 8,027,559
Africa 335,925 335,887
Other 2,746,775 2,517,490
Total 52,847,732 49,001,626

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Maturities of the fixed-income and variable-yield securities

in EUR thousand Amortised cost’ Fair value Amortised cost™2? Fair value?
Held to maturity

due in one year 74,617 75,408 136,693 139,574
due after one through two years 47,542 50,109 - -
due after two through three years - - 48,284 51,684
due after three through four years = = - -
due after four through five years = = - -
due after five through ten years = = - -
due after more than ten years 343 126 600 217
Total 122,502 125,643 185,577 191,475
Loans and receivables

due in one year 328,706 331,339 273,701 277,587
due after one through two years 649,395 665,580 191,024 200,587
due after two through three years 228,907 238,238 597,031 613,668
due after three through four years 90,161 99,763 92,742 99,564
due after four through five years 329,369 371,702 136,620 152,813
due after five through ten years 398,872 455,581 674,921 778,086
due after more than ten years 392,019 422,377 346,801 395,661
Total 2,417,429 2,584,580 2,312,840 2,517,966
Available for sale

due in one year? 4,603,098 4,620,539 4,304,412 4,318,468
due after one through two years 3,402,686 3,467,805 3,278,457 3,359,359
due after two through three years 3,098,041 3,197,773 3,294,465 3,413,253
due after three through four years 3,696,654 3,802,945 2,919,887 3,077,189
due after four through five years 3,360,262 3,442,165 3,347,071 3,485,182
due after five through ten years 15,975,331 16,701,488 14,567,732 15,567,648
due after more than ten years 8,286,423 8,801,330 6,397,959 7,236,121
Total 42,422,495 44,034,045 38,109,983 40,457,220
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

due in one year 12,336 12,336 29,009 29,009
due after one through two years 9,365 9,365 28,145 28,145
due after two through three years 25,134 25,134 31,446 31,446
due after three through four years 20,557 20,557 9,122 9,122
due after four through five years 845 845 3,757 3,757
due after five through ten years 4,362 4,362 4,232 4,232
due after more than ten years = = - -
Total 72,599 72,599 105,711 105,711
" Including accrued interest

2 Including short-term investments and cash

3 Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on the portfolio of investments
classified as held to maturity as well as their fair value

30.6.2021

Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised gains Unrealised Fair value
including interest losses
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Investments held to maturity
Fixed-income securities
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 15,341 340 98 = 15,439
Corporate securities 47,542 551 2,566 = 50,108
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 59,619 1,796 694 217 60,096
Total 122,502 2,687 3,358 217 125,643

Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on the portfolio of investments
classified as held to maturity as well as their fair value

31.12.2020
Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised Unrealised Fair value
including interest gains losses
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Investments held to maturity
Fixed-income securities
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 23,260 130 554 - 23,814
Corporate securities 48,285 1,292 3,400 - 51,685
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 114,032 2,627 2,327 383 115,976
Total 185,577 4,049 6,281 383 191,475
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Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on loans and receivables as well as their fair value

30.6.2021

Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised gains Unrealised Fair value
including interest losses

in EUR thousand accrued interest
Loans and receivables
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 1,065,989 16,550 100,001 = 1,165,990
Corporate securities 972,679 22,217 20,156 2,461 990,374
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 378,761 7,608 50,148 693 428,216
Total 2,417,429 46,375 170,305 3,154 2,584,580

Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on loans and receivables as well as their fair value

31.12.2020
Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised gains Unrealised Fair value
including interest losses
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Loans and receivables
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 1,117,235 17,285 124,022 - 1,241,257
Corporate securities’ 817,108 11,836 30,470 8,026 839,552
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 378,497 6,399 58,660 - 437,157
Total 2,312,840 35,520 213,152 8,026 2,517,966

' Restated pursuant to IAS 8
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Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on the portfolio of investments

classified as available for sale as well as their fair value

30.6.2021

Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised gains Unrealised Fair value
including interest losses
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Available for sale
Fixed-income securities
Government debt securities of
EU member states 4,515,529 17,009 291,591 14,021 4,793,099
US Treasury notes 7,895,612 25,742 382,677 35,573 8,242,716
Other foreign government
debt securities 3,986,910 32,278 122,707 19,809 4,089,808
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 6,495,707 46,329 280,312 37,239 6,738,780
Corporate securities 14,800,487 129,802 629,898 68,666 15,361,719
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 2,741,792 16,165 77,379 10,811 2,808,360
Investment funds 126,112 - 13,795 528 139,379
40,562,149 267,325 1,798,359 186,647 42,173,861
Equity securities
Shares 1,731 - 414 - 2,145
Investment funds 180,876 = 111,875 = 292,751
182,607 = 112,289 = 294,896
Short-term investments 415,208 1,333 94 256 415,046
Total 41,159,964 268,658 1,910,742 186,903 42,883,803
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Amortised cost, unrealised gains and losses and accrued interest on the portfolio of investments
classified as available for sale as well as their fair value

31.12.2020
Amortised cost Thereof accrued Unrealised gains Unrealised Fair value
including interest losses
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Available for sale
Fixed-income securities
Government debt securities of
EU member states 5,012,966 20,970 380,394 1,540 5,391,820
US Treasury notes 7,260,239 24,856 505,067 11,222 7,754,084
Other foreign government
debt securities 3,700,451 31,029 165,774 6,671 3,859,554
Debt securities issued by
semi-governmental entities 5,870,954 46,222 400,193 3,523 6,267,624
Corporate securities 12,140,504 116,310 818,711 8,595 12,950,620
Covered bonds/asset-backed securities 2,390,407 18,538 102,621 8,271 2,484,757
Investment funds 128,820 - 14,726 282 143,264
36,504,341 257,925 2,387,486 40,104 38,851,723
Equity securities
Shares 587 - 36 - 623
Investment funds 267,442 - 110,357 - 377,799
268,029 - 110,393 - 378,422
Short-term investments 327,571 1,655 54 199 327,426
Total 37,099,941 259,580 2,497,933 40,303 39,557,571
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Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss before and after accrued interest

as well as accrued interest on such financial assets

BEFIZAN  31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2020
Fair value before Accrued interest Fair value
in EUR thousand accrued interest
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Fixed-income securities
Corporate securities 72,146 105,007 453 704 72,599 105,711
72,146 105,007 453 704 72,599 105,711
Other financial assets
Derivatives 195,783 234,728 = (39) 195,783 234,689
195,783 234,728 = (39) 195,783 234,689
Total 267,929 339,735 453 665 268,382 340,400

Information on fair values and fair value hierarchy

The methods and models set out below are used to establish
the fair value of financial instruments on the assets and liabil-
ities side of the balance sheet. The fair value of a financial
instrument corresponds in principle to the amount that
Hannover Re would receive or pay if it were to sell or settle
the said financial instrument on the balance sheet date.
Insofar as market prices are listed on markets for financial

Valuation models

Financial instrument Parameter

instruments, their bid price is used. In other cases the fair
values are established on the basis of the market conditions
prevailing on the balance sheet date for financial assets with
similar credit rating, duration and return characteristics or
using recognised models of mathematical finance. Hannover
Re uses a number of different valuation models for this pur-
pose. The details are set out in the following table.

Pricing model

Fixed-income securities

Unlisted plain vanilla bonds, Interest rate curve

interest rate swaps

Unlisted structured bonds

Unlisted ABS/MBS, CDO/CLO
speed and recovery rates

Interest rate curve, volatility surfaces

Risk premiums, default rates, prepayment

Present value method

Hull-White, Black-Karasinski,
LIBOR market model etc.

Present value method

Other invested assets

Unlisted equities and equity investments
as applicable book value

Private equity funds, private equity
real estate funds

Unlisted bond, equity and real estate funds Audited net asset values (NAV)

Acquisition cost, cash flows, EBIT multiples,

Audited net asset values (NAV)

Capitalised earnings method, discounted
cash flow method, multiple-based
approaches

Net asset value method

Net asset value method

Other financial assets — at fair value through profit or loss

Currency forwards

Inflation swaps

OTC stock options,
OTC stock index options
dividend yield

Insurance derivatives
interest rate curve
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Interest rate curves, spot and forward rates

Inflation swap rates (Consumer Price Index),
historical index fixings, interest rate curve

Listing of the underlying share, implicit
volatilities, money-market interest rate,

Fair values, actuarial parameters,

Interest parity model

Present value method with seasonality
adjustment

Black-Scholes

Present value method



Fair value hierarchy

For the purposes of the disclosure requirements pursuant to
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, it is necessary to assign
financial assets and liabilities to a three-level fair value hier-
archy.

The fair value hierarchy, which reflects characteristics of the
price data and inputs used for measurement purposes, is
structured as follows:

¢ Level 1: Assets or liabilities measured at (unadjusted)
prices quoted directly in active and liquid markets.

e Level 2: Assets or liabilities which are measured using
observable market data and are not allocable to level 1.
Measurement is based, in particular, on prices for com-
parable assets and liabilities that are traded on active
markets, prices on markets that are not considered ac-
tive as well as inputs derived from such prices or market
data.

¢ Level 3: Assets or liabilities that cannot be measured or
can only be partially measured using observable market
inputs. The measurement of such instruments draws
principally on valuation models and methods.

If input factors from different levels are used to measure a
financial instrument, the level of the lowest input factor
material to measurement is determinative.

The operational units responsible for coordinating and docu-
menting measurement are organisationally separate from the
operational units that enter into investment risks. All relevant
valuation processes and valuation methods are documented.
Decisions on fundamental valuation issues are taken by a val-
uation committee that meets monthly.

In the current reporting period, as in the comparable period
of the previous year, no financial assets or liabilities had to be
reclassified to a different level of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table shows the breakdown of financial assets
and liabilities recognised at fair value into the three-level fair
value hierarchy.

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities recognised at fair value

30.6.2021

in EUR thousand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed-income securities 28,914 42,217,546 = 42,246,460
Equity securities 294,896 = = 294,896
Other financial assets = 37,065 158,718 195,783
Real estate funds = = 657,817 657,817
Other invested assets - - 2,230,603 2,230,603
Short-term investments 415,046 - - 415,046
Total financial assets 738,856 42,254,611 3,047,138 46,040,605
Other liabilities = 71,621 25,081 96,702
Total financial liabilities - 71,621 25,081 96,702
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities recognised at fair value

31.12.2020
in EUR thousand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed-income securities 22,301 38,935,133 - 38,957,434
Equity securities 378,422 - - 378,422
Other financial assets - 80,000 154,689 234,689
Real estate funds - - 582,296 582,296
Other invested assets - - 1,982,592 1,982,592
Short-term investments 327,426 - - 327,426
Total financial assets 728,149 39,015,133 2,719,577 42,462,859
Other liabilities - 58,798 26,488 85,286
Total financial liabilities - 58,798 26,488 85,286

The following table provides a reconciliation of the fair values
of financial assets and liabilities included in level 3 at the be-
ginning of the period with the fair values as at the balance

sheet date.

Movements in level 3 financial assets and liabilities

1.1.-30.6.2021

Other financial

Real estate funds

Other invested

Other liabilities

in EUR thousand assets assets
Net book value at 31 December
of the previous year 154,689 582,296 1,982,592 26,488
Currency translation at 1 January 5,170 9,315 42,320 885
Net book value after currency translation 159,859 591,611 2,024,912 27,373
Income and expenses

Recognised in the statement of income 14,399 (5,633) (14,554) (3,582)

Recognised directly in

shareholders’ equity = 23,840 198,195 =
Purchases 15,426 71,280 195,316 794
Sales 33,603 23,965 175,208 =
Transfers to level 3 = = = =
Transfers from level 3 = = = =
Currency translation at 30 June 2,637 684 1,942 496
Closing balance at 30 June of the year under review 158,718 657,817 2,230,603 25,081
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Movements in level 3 financial assets and liabilities

1.1.-30.6.2020
Other financial  Real estate funds Other invested Other liabilities

in EUR thousand assets assets
Net book value at 31 December
of the previous year 160,418 534,739 1,841,392 30,042
Currency translation at 1 January (92) 17,933 (951) 7)
Net book value after currency translation 160,326 552,672 1,840,441 30,025
Income and expenses

Recognised in the statement of income 19,045 (6,787) (43,456) (3,793)

Recognised directly in

shareholders’ equity - 3,634 (74,630) -
Purchases 26,282 38,806 208,071 3,492
Sales 41,012 12,524 56,648 -
Transfers to level 3 - - - -
Transfers from level 3 - - - -
Currency translation at 30 June (7,901 (303) (1,090) (1,972)
Closing balance at 30 June of the year under review 156,740 575,498 1,872,688 27,752

The breakdown of income and expenses recognised in the

with financial assets and liabilities assigned to level 3 is as

statement of income in the reporting period in connection  follows.

Income and expenses from level 3 financial assets and liabilities

1.1. - 30.6.2021

Other financial  Real estate funds Other invested Other liabilities

in EUR thousand assets assets

Total in the financial year

Ordinary investment income = = (56) =
Realised gains and losses on investments = = (162) =
Change in fair value of

financial instruments 14,399 = (432) 3,582
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of

investments - (5,633) (13,904) -
Thereof attributable to financial instruments

included in the portfolio at 30 June of the year

under review

Ordinary investment income = = (56) =
Change in fair value of financial

instruments (12,341) = 15 3,582
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of

investments = (5,633) (13,905) -
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Income and expenses from level 3 financial assets and liabilities

1.1.-30.6.2020

Other financial ~ Real estate funds Other invested Other liabilities
in EUR thousand assets assets
Total in the financial year
Ordinary investment Income - - (7) -
Realised gains and losses on investments - - 4) -
Change in fair value of financial
instruments 19,045 - 1,509 3,793
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of
investments - (6,787) (44,954) -
Thereof attributable to financial instruments included
in the portfolio at 30 June of the year under review
Ordinary investment income - - (7) -
Change in fair value of financial
instruments 19,045 - 1,509 3,793
Total depreciation, impairments and appreciation of
investments - (6,787) (44,954) -

If models are used to measure financial assets and liabilities
included in level 3 under which the adoption of alternative
inputs leads to a material change in fair value, IFRS 13 re-
quires disclosure of the effects of these alternative assump-
tions. Of the financial assets included in level 3 with fair val-
ues of altogether EUR 3,047.1 million (EUR 2,719.6 million)
as at the balance sheet date, Hannover Re measures financial
assets with a volume of EUR 2,795.0 million (EUR 2,450.0
million) using the net asset value method. These items con-
sist principally of shares in private equity and real estate
funds. Assuming that the present values of the assets and lia-
bilities contained in the funds would be 10% lower than used
for measurement as at the balance sheet date, the fair values

6.2. Financing liabilities

Hannover Re recognised altogether five (four) subordinated
bonds placed on the European capital market with an amor-
tised cost of EUR 2,976.9 million (EUR 2,231.6 million) as at
the balance sheet date.

The subordinated debt from the 2012 financial year in an
amount of EUR 500.0 million was issued through Hannover
Finance (Luxembourg) S.A. The fair value of the bond as at 30
June 2021 was EUR 548.2 million (EUR 571.1 million).

Four (three) further subordinated debts from the 2014 and
2020 financial years with volumes of EUR 500.0 million each
and from the 2019 and 2021 financial years with volumes of
EUR 750.0 million each, the combined fair values of which
were EUR 2,600.0 million (EUR 1,879.1 million), were issued
by Hannover Riick SE.
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for these items would amount to EUR 2,515.5 million. The
remaining financial assets included in level 3 with a volume of
EUR 252.1 million (EUR 269.6 million) relate to financial as-
sets, the valuation of which is based on technical parameters.
Derivative financial instruments in connection with the rein-
surance business were recognised under the other liabilities
included in level 3 in the year under review. Their perfor-
mance is dependent upon the risk experience of an underly-
ing group of primary insurance contracts with statutory re-
serving requirements. The application of alternative inputs
and assumptions has no material effect on the consolidated
financial statement.

In April 2018 Hannover Riick SE issued a senior unsecured
bond with a volume of EUR 750.0 million. The bond has a
maturity of 10 years. The fair value of this bond was EUR
805.1 million (EUR 828.9 million) as at the balance sheet
date.

For further information regarding the maturity and coupon of
these bonds please see the Group annual financial report for
the previous year.

In addition, long-term debt of EUR 372.9 million (EUR 372.7
million), which is principally used for financing real estate
transactions, as well as lease liabilities of EUR 83.5 million
(EUR 82.8 million) existed as at the balance sheet date.



6.3.
Shareholders’ equity is shown as a separate component of the
financial statement in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements” and subject to TAS 32 “Financial In-
struments: Disclosure and Presentation” in conjunction with
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment”. The change in shareholders’ equity comprises not
only the net income deriving from the statement of income
but also the changes in the value of asset and liability items
not recognised in the statement of income.

The common shares (share capital of Hannover Riick SE)
amount to EUR 120,597,134.00. They are divided into
120,597,134 voting and dividend-bearing registered ordinary
shares in the form of no-par shares. The shares are paid in in
full. Each share carries an equal voting right and an equal
dividend entitlement.

Non-controlling interests in the shareholders’ equity of the
subsidiaries amounted to EUR 831.7 million (EUR 844.4 mil-
lion) as at the balance sheet date. They were principally
attributable to non-controlling interests in the shareholders’
equity of E+S Riickversicherung AG in an amount of
EUR 723.3 million (EUR 759.7 million).

Conditional capital of up to EUR 24,119,426 is available. It
can be used to grant shares to holders of bonds and/or profit-
sharing rights with conversion rights and warrants and has a
time limit of 4 May 2026.

In addition, authorised capital of up to EUR 24,119,426 is
similarly available with a time limit of 4 May 2026.

The subscription right of shareholders may be excluded in
each case with the consent of the Supervisory Board under
certain conditions.

Shareholders’ equity, non-controlling interests and treasury shares

The Executive Board is authorised, with the consent of the
Supervisory Board, to acquire treasury shares — including
through the use of derivatives — up to an amount of 10% of
the share capital. The authorisation has a time limit of 5 May
2025.

The Executive Board is additionally authorised, with the con-
sent of the Supervisory Board, to use an amount of up to EUR
1,000 thousand of the existing authorised capital to issue em-
ployee shares.

The Annual General Meeting of Hannover Riick SE resolved
on 5 May 2021 to distribute a gross dividend of EUR 4.50 per
share, altogether EUR 542.7 million (EUR 663.3 million), for
the 2020 financial year.

IAS 1 requires separate disclosure of treasury shares in share-
holders’ equity. As part of this year’s employee share option
plan Hannover Riick SE acquired altogether 15,766 (16,511)
treasury shares during the second quarter of 2021 on the
legal basis of § 71 Para. 1 No. 2 Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
and delivered them to eligible employees at preferential
conditions. These shares are blocked until 31 May 2025. This
transaction resulted in an expense of EUR 0.5 million
(EUR 0.5 million), which was recognised under personnel ex-
penditure, as well as a negligible change in retained earnings
recognised in equity. The company was no longer in posses-
sion of treasury shares as at the balance sheet date.

The net increase in the other reserves arising out of currency
translation, which is recognised in equity, was attributable in
an amount of EUR 42.5 million (in the previous year a net
decrease of EUR 35.3 million) to the translation of long-term
debt or loans with no maturity date extended to Group com-
panies and branches abroad.

49




7. Notes on the individual items of the statement of income

7.1. Gross written premium

Gross written premium

in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020
Regional origin

Germany 1,257,289 1,010,376
United Kingdom 1,808,312 1,648,707
France 556,268 579,149
Other 1,682,672 1,437,192
Europe 5,304,541 4,675,424
USA 4,436,634 4,071,843
Other 740,126 579,685
North America 5,176,760 4,651,528
Asia 2,236,158 2,293,020
Australia 891,391 741,774
Australasia 3,127,549 3,034,794
Africa 293,959 244,118
Other 561,790 540,272
Total 14,464,599 13,146,136
7.2. Investment income

Investment income

in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020
Income from real estate 75,414 78,763
Dividends 4,433 3,107
Interest income 489,634 505,622
Other investment income 112,220 20,169
Ordinary investment income 681,701 607,661
Profit or loss on shares in associated companies 16,019 6,431
Realised gains on investments 206,914 174,024
Realised losses on investments 64,893 34,199
Change in fair value of financial instruments (43,141) 50,648
Impairments on real estate 23,762 27,729
Impairments on fixed-income securities 233 11,796
Impairments on participating interests and other financial assets 14,377 45,576
Other investment expenses 64,578 62,659
Net income from assets under own management 693,650 656,805
Interest income on funds withheld and contract deposits 290,048 174,085
Interest expense on funds withheld and contract deposits 117,897 37,807
Total investment income 865,801 793,083

The impairments totalling EUR 20.2 million (EUR 66.6 mil-
lion) were attributable in an amount of EUR 13.9 million
(EUR 45.0 million) to alternative investments. Impairments
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of EUR 5.6 million (EUR 9.2 million) were recognised on
real estate and real estate funds. The write-downs taken on

fixed-income securities totalled

0.2  million



(EUR 11.8 million). Impairments of EUR 0.5 million (EUR 0.6
million) were taken on other invested assets. These write-
downs were not opposed by any write-ups.

The portfolio did not contain any overdue, unadjusted assets

as at the balance sheet date since overdue securities are writ-
ten down immediately.

Interest income on investments

In the first quarter of 2021 a cedant of Hannover Riick SE
disposed of parts of its life insurance portfolio. In this context
it was possible to partially liquidate or restructure the collat-
eralisation arrangements that had been put in place by Han-
nover Riick SE in connection with the reinsurance of this
portfolio. This restructuring gave rise to a positive earnings
contribution overall amounting to EUR 129.3 million before
tax in the first quarter of 2021.

in EUR thousand 1.1.-30.6.2020
Fixed-income securities — held to maturity 2,750 4,253
Fixed-income securities — loans and receivables 41,018 39,475
Fixed-income securities — available for sale 434,509 446,128
Financial assets — at fair value through profit or loss 1,582 2,339
Other 9,775 13,427
Total 489,634 505,622

8. Other notes

8.1.
Derivatives are financial instruments, the fair value of which
is derived from an underlying trading instrument such as eq-
uities, bonds, indices or currencies. We use derivative finan-
cial instruments in order to hedge parts of our portfolio
against interest rate and market price risks, optimise returns
or realise intentions to buy/sell. In this context we take
special care to limit the risks, select first-class counterparties
and adhere strictly to the standards defined by investment
guidelines.

Hannover Re holds derivative financial instruments to hedge
interest rate risks from loans connected with the financing of
real estate; these gave rise to recognition of other liabilities in
an amount of EUR 3.0 million (EUR 4.2 million).

Hannover Re’s portfolio contained forward exchange transac-
tions that gave rise to recognition of other liabilities in an
amount of EUR 56.0 million (EUR 46.5 million) and other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in an
amount of EUR 15.2 million (EUR 7.2 million). The decrease
in equity from hedging instruments recognised directly in
equity pursuant to IAS 39 derived in an amount of

Derivative financial instruments and financial guarantees

EUR 1.2 million (EUR 1.7 million) from the forward exchange
transactions taken out to hedge currency risks from long-
term investments in foreign operations. These hedging in-
struments resulted in the recognition of other liabilities of
EUR 1.2 million (EUR 1.0 million).

In order to hedge the risk of share price changes in connec-
tion with the stock appreciation rights granted under the
share award plan, Hannover Re took out hedges in 2014 in
the form of so-called equity swaps. The fair value of these
instruments amounted to EUR 1.4 million (EUR 0.0 million)
as at the balance sheet date and was recognised under other
liabilities. The hedge gave rise to a decrease in equity from
hedging instruments recognised directly in equity in an
amount of EUR 1.2 million (EUR 5.9 million); ineffective com-
ponents of the hedge were recognised in a minimal amount
as income.

The net changes in the fair value of the aforementioned in-
struments resulted in a charge of EUR 7.8 million (EUR 6.3
million) to the result of the period under review.

Derivative financial instruments in connection with reinsurance

A number of treaties in life and health reinsurance meet crite-
ria which require application of the stipulations contained in
IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” governing embedded deriva-
tives. These accounting regulations require that certain deriv-
atives embedded in reinsurance contracts be separated from
the underlying insurance contract (“host contract”), reported
separately at fair value in accordance with TAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and recognised

under investments. Fluctuations in the fair value of the deriv-
ative components are to be recognised through profit and
loss in subsequent periods.

Within the scope of the accounting of “modified coinsurance”
and “coinsurance funds withheld” (ModCo) reinsurance trea-
ties, under which securities deposits are held by the ceding
companies and payments rendered on the basis of the income
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from certain securities of the ceding company, the inter-
est-rate risk elements are clearly and closely related to the
underlying reinsurance arrangements. Embedded derivatives
consequently result solely from the credit risk of the underly-
ing securities portfolio.

Hannover Re calculates the fair values of the embedded de-
rivatives in ModCo treaties using the market information
available on the valuation date on the basis of a credit spread
method. Under this method the derivative has no value on the
date when the contract commences and its value then fluctu-
ates over time according to changes in the credit spreads of
the securities. The derivative was recognised in an amount of
EUR 1.6 million (EUR 15.2 million) under other financial as-
sets at fair value through profit or loss and in an amount of
EUR 0.4 million (EUR 0.3 million) under other liabilities as at
the balance sheet date. In the course of the year the change
in the fair value of the derivative gave rise in total to a charge
of EUR 14.1 million (EUR 9.7 million) before tax.

A derivative financial instrument was also unbundled from
another similarly structured transaction in previous years.
This gave rise to recognition of other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in an amount of EUR 20.3 million
(EUR 57.6 million). The performance of this derivative has
reduced the result by EUR 39.8 million in the financial year to
date (improvement of EUR 40.2 million).

A number of transactions concluded in the Life&Health rein-
surance business group in previous years, under which Han-
nover Re companies offer their contracting parties coverage
for risks from possible future payment obligations arising out
of hedging instruments, are also to be classified as derivative
financial instruments. The payment obligations result from
contractually defined events and relate to the development of
an underlying group of primary insurance contracts with
statutory reserving requirements. The contracts are to be cat-
egorised and recognised as stand-alone credit derivatives
pursuant to IAS 39. These derivative financial instruments
were carried in equity on initial recognition. The fair value of
these instruments was EUR 28.3 million (EUR 31.6 million)
on the balance sheet date and was recognised under other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The change
in value in subsequent periods is dependent upon the risk
experience and has led to an improvement of EUR 17.1 mil-
lion (EUR 20.2 million) in investment income in the financial
year to date.
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A retrocession agreement in the area of life and health rein-
surance under which the premiums were deposited with
Hannover Re and invested in a structured bond was terminat-
ed as scheduled. The retrocessionaire furnished a guarantee
for its fair value. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS
4 this guarantee was unbundled from the retrocession agree-
ment and carried as a derivative financial instrument at fair
value. In the course of the previous year the change in the fair
value of the derivative resulted in a charge of EUR 2.6 million.
Conversely, the performance of the structured bond, which
was also measured at fair value, gave rise to income in the
same amount in the previous year.

In the area of life and health reinsurance a reinsurance treaty
with a financing component was also written in previous
years under which the amount and timing of the return flows
are dependent on lapse rates within an underlying primary
insurance portfolio. This treaty and a corresponding retroces-
sion agreement, which were classified as financial instru-
ments pursuant to [AS 39, resulted in the recognition of other
liabilities of EUR 25.1 million (EUR 26.5 million) and other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in an
amount of EUR 130.4 million (EUR 123.1 million). Altogether,
these arrangements have given rise to an improvement in in-
come of EUR 0.9 million (EUR 2.6 million) in the course of the
financial year to date.

At the end of the 2017 financial year an index-linked cover
was written for longevity risks. The resulting derivative was
recognised as at the balance sheet date with a negative fair
value of EUR 2.9 million (EUR 2.2 million) under other
liabilities. The change in the fair value of the derivative has
given rise to income of EUR 2.2 million (expense of
EUR 2.7 million) in the course of the financial year to date.

All in all, application of the standards governing the account-
ing for derivatives in connection with the technical account
led to recognition of assets totalling EUR 180.6 million
(EUR 227.5 million) as well as recognition of liabilities in an
amount of EUR 35.1 million (EUR 33.7 million) from the de-
rivatives resulting from technical items as at the balance
sheet date. Improvements in investment income amounting
to EUR 20.2 million (EUR 64.6 million) as well as charges to
income of EUR 56.0 million (EUR 15.0 million) have been rec-
ognised in the current year under review from all separately
measured derivatives in connection with the technical ac-
count.



Financial guarantees

Structured transactions were entered into in the life and
health reinsurance segment in order to finance statutory re-
serves (so-called Triple-X or AXXX reserves) of US ceding
companies. In each case such structures necessitated the in-
volvement of a special purpose entity. The special purpose
entities carry extreme mortality risks securitised by the ced-
ants above a contractually defined retention and transfer
these risks by way of a fixed/floating swap to a member com-
pany of the Hannover Re Group. The total amount of the con-
tractually agreed capacities of the transactions is equivalent
to EUR 2,529.1 million (EUR 2,447.3 million); an amount
equivalent to EUR 1,788.0 million (EUR 1,901.8 million) had
been taken up as at the balance sheet date. The variable pay-
ments to the special purpose entities that are guaranteed by
companies belonging to the Hannover Re Group cover their
payment obligations. Under some of the transactions the

8.2. Related party disclosures

IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” defines related parties as
group entities of a common parent, associated entities, legal
entities under the influence of key management personnel
and the key management personnel of the entity itself. Trans-
actions between Hannover Riick SE and its subsidiaries,
which are to be regarded as related parties, were eliminated
through consolidation and are therefore not discussed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statement. In the period
under review the following significant business relations
existed with related parties.

Talanx AG holds an unchanged majority interest of 50.22% in
Hannover Rick SE. For its part, HDI Haftpflichtverband der
Deutschen Industrie Versicherungsverein auf Gegenseitigkeit
(HDI), Hannover, holds a stake of 79.0% in Talanx AG.

The business relationship between Hannover Riick SE and its
subsidiary E+S Riickversicherung AG is based on a coopera-
tion agreement. A retrocession by Hannover Riick SE to
E+S Riickversicherung AG exists in property and casualty re-
insurance. E+S Rickversicherung AG and Hannover Riick SE
bear exclusive responsibility for German business and for in-
ternational markets respectively.

Companies belonging to the Talanx Group granted the
Hannover Re Group insurance protection inter alia in the ar-
eas of public liability, building, contractors all risks, group

accident and business travel insurance. Divisions of

payments resulting from the swaps in the event of a claim are
reimbursed by the parent companies of the cedants by way of
compensation agreements. In this case the reimbursement
claims from the compensation agreements are to be capital-
ised separately from and up to the amount of the provision.
Under IAS 39 these transactions are to be recognised at fair
value as financial guarantees. To this end Hannover Re uses
the net method, according to which the present value of the
agreed fixed swap premiums is netted with the present value
of the guarantee commitment. The fair value on initial recog-
nition therefore amounted to zero. The higher of the fair value
and the amount carried as a provision on the liabilities side
pursuant to IAS 37 is recognised at the point in time when
utilisation is considered probable. This was not the case as at
the balance sheet date.

Talanx AG also performed services for the Hannover Re Group
in the areas of taxes and general administration. Divisions of
Hannover Riick SE performed services in connection with
the insurance and reinsurance business of HDI Global
Specialty SE, a joint venture of Hannover Riick SE and
HDI Global SE.

Talanx Reinsurance Broker GmbH and Talanx AG grant
Hannover Riick SE and E+S Riickversicherung AG a preferen-
tial position as reinsurers of cedants within the Talanx Group.
In addition, Hannover Riick SE and E+S Riickversicherung
AG are able to participate in the protection covers on the
retention of Group cedants and share in the protection afford-
ed by them. In certain circumstances Hannover Riick SE and
E+S Riickversicherung AG are obliged to assume unplaced
shares of the reinsurance of Group cedants from Talanx Rein-
surance Broker GmbH.

The Hannover Re Group provides reinsurance protection for
the HDI Group. To this extent, numerous underwriting busi-
ness relations exist with related parties in Germany and
abroad which are not included in Hannover Re’s consolida-
tion. This includes business both assumed and ceded at usual
market conditions.

The reinsurance relationships with related parties in the peri-

od under review are shown with their total amounts in the
following table.
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Business assumed and ceded in Germany and abroad

Property and Life and Total Property and Life and Total
casualty health casualty health
in EUR thousand reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Material items in the statement
of income
Business assumed
Premium 991,381 70,474 1,061,855 830,984 65,742 896,726
Underwriting result 7,386 9,889 17,275 (79,216) 10,374 (68,842)
Business ceded
Premium (2,327) (34,702) (37,029) 6,508 (37,545) (31,037)
Underwriting result 5,205 (5,183) 22 10,935 (4,979) 5,956
Total
Premium 989,054 35,772 1,024,826 837,492 28,197 865,689
Underwriting result 12,591 4,706 17,297 (68,281) 5,395 (62,886)
Property and Life and Total Property and Life and Total
casualty health casualty health
in EUR thousand reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Material items in the balance sheet
Assets
Funds withheld 127,593 915,304 1,042,897 51,966 784,123 836,089
Deferred acquisition costs 297,451 18,675 316,126 245,179 21,942 267,121
Accounts receivable 663,798 8,172 671,970 521,810 14,566 536,376
Liabilities
Loss and loss adjustment
expense reserve 3,044,215 47,653 3,091,868 2,801,376 46,269 2,847,645
Benefit reserve = 94,725 94,725 - 95,746 95,746
Unearned premium reserve 1,029,059 163 1,029,222 828,114 98 828,212
Contract deposits = 792,739 792,739 - 663,479 663,479
Reinsurance payable 33,232 17,742 50,974 24,367 18,676 43,043

In the context of a bond issue by Talanx AG the Group com-
panies Hannover Riick SE and E+S Riickversicherung AG in-
vested in a nominal amount of EUR 47.0 million in the issued
bearer debt, which has a coupon of 3.125%. The carrying
amount of the instrument, which is recognised under fixed-
income securities held to maturity, was EUR 47.5 million
(EUR 47.5 million) including accrued interest of EUR 0.5 mil-
lion (EUR 0.5 million).

HDI Lebensversicherung AG, Cologne, participated in a nom-
inal amount of EUR 50.0 million in the subordinated bond
issued by Hannover Riick SE in September 2014 with a
coupon of 3.375%.

Within the contractually agreed framework Ampega Asset
Management GmbH performs investment and asset manage-
ment services for Hannover Riick SE and some of its subsid-
iaries. Assets in special funds are managed by Ampega
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Investment GmbH. Ampega Real Estate GmbH performs
services for Hannover Re under a number of management
contracts.

Hannover Riick SE has concluded agreements with Ampega
Asset Management GmbH, HDI Global Specialty SE, Talanx
Reinsurance Broker GmbH and Svedea AB that enable these
companies to use software for screening sanctions lists.

Under long-term lease arrangements, companies belonging
to the Hannover Re Group rented out business premises in
2015 to HDI Service AG, Hannover.

Furthermore, IT and management services were performed
for Talanx Reinsurance Broker AG, Hannover, under service
contracts.



Actuarial opinions with respect to the pension commitments
given to staff are drawn up for Hannover Riick SE and E+S
Riickversicherung AG by HDI Pensionsmanagement AG and
HDI Lebensversicherung AG under an actuarial service
contract.

Talanx AG performs various services in the area of taxes for a
number of investment vehicles of the Hannover Re Group in
the asset classes of private equity and real estate. In this re-
gard corresponding agreements have been concluded with
altogether nine Hannover Re companies.

8.3. Staff
As at the balance sheet date altogether 3,308 (3,218) staff
were employed by the Hannover Re Group, with 1,443 (1,407)

8.4.

Calculation of the earnings per share

Earnings per share

Since 2012 a service agreement has existed between
Hannover Riick SE and Talanx AG regarding the use of data
acquisition software for Group accounting purposes.

Hannover Riick SE has concluded a service contract with HDI
Service AG in the area of flight services as well as a contract
regarding the reciprocal provision of business continuity
management services.

Since 2004 a service agreement has existed between
Hannover Riick SE, E+S Riickversicherung AG and Talanx
Reinsurance Broker GmbH regarding the receipt of market
security services and access to the business partner informa-
tion system of Hannover Riick SE.

employed in Germany and 1,865 (1,811) working for the con-
solidated Group companies abroad.

Group net income in EUR thousand
Weighted average of issued shares
Basic earnings per share in EUR

Diluted earnings per share in EUR

The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net in-
come attributable to the shareholders of Hannover Riick SE
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding with-
in the period under review.

Neither in the period under review nor in the previous report-
ing period were there any dilutive effects.

The weighted average number of issued shares was slightly
below the number of shares outstanding as at the balance
sheet date. On the basis of this year’s employee share option
plan Hannover Riick SE acquired treasury shares in the
course of the second quarter of 2021 and sold them to eligible
employees at a later date.

8.5. Contingent liabilities and commitments
Hannover Riick SE has secured by subordinated guarantee
the subordinated debt issued by Hannover Finance (Luxem-
bourg) S.A. in the 2012 financial year in an amount of
EUR 500.0 million.

The guarantee given by Hannover Riick SE for the subordi-
nated debt attaches if the issuer fails to render payments due
under the bond. The guarantees cover the relevant bond vol-
ume as well as interest due until the repayment dates. Given
the fact that interest on the bond is partly dependent on the
capital market rates applicable at the interest payment dates

1.1.-30.6.2020
670,552 402,352

120,596,871 120,596,859

5.56 3.34

5.56 3.34

The weighted average number of shares does not include
15,766 (16,511) treasury shares pro rata temporis for the du-
ration of the holding period. For further details please see our
comments in section 6.3 “Shareholders’ equity, non-con-
trolling interests and treasury shares”.

There were no other extraordinary components of income
which should have been recognised or disclosed separately in
the calculation of the earnings per share.

The earnings per share could potentially be diluted in future
through the issue of shares or subscription rights from the
authorised or conditional capital.

(floating rate), the maximum undiscounted amounts that can
be called cannot be estimated with sufficient accuracy.
Hannover Riick SE does not have any rights of recourse
outside the Group with respect to the guarantee payments.

As security for technical liabilities to our US clients, we
have established two trust accounts (master trust and
supplemental trust) in the United States. They amounted
to EUR 4,070.2 million (EUR 3,939.7 million) and
EUR 239.2 million (EUR 208.6 million) respectively as at the
balance sheet date. The securities held in the trust accounts

55




are shown as available-for-sale investments. In addition, we
furnished further collateral to ceding companies in an
amount of EUR 3,734.9 million (EUR 2,814.5 million) in the
form of so-called “single trust funds”. This amount includes
a sum equivalent to EUR 2,841.0 million (EUR 2,464.4 mil-
lion) which was furnished by investors as security for poten-
tial reinsurance obligations from ILS transactions.

As part of our business activities we hold collateral available
outside the United States in various blocked custody accounts
and trust accounts, the total amount of which in relation to
the Group’s major companies was EUR 3,160.5 million
(EUR 3,065.2 million) as at the balance sheet date.

The securities held in the blocked custody accounts and trust
accounts are recognised predominantly as available-for-sale
investments.

As security for our technical liabilities, various financial insti-
tutions have furnished sureties for our company in the form
of letters of credit. The total amount as at the balance sheet
date was EUR 1,090.8 million (EUR 1,448.4 million).

We put up own investments with a book value of
EUR 49.8 million (EUR 37.3 million) as collateral for existing
derivative transactions. We received collateral with a fair val-
ue of EUR 3.3 million (EUR 2.8 million) for existing derivative
transactions.

As collateral for commitments in connection with participat-
ing interests in real estate companies and real estate transac-
tions, the usual collateral under such transactions has been
furnished to various banks, the amount of which totalled
EUR 673.6 million (EUR 662.3 million) as at the balance sheet
date.
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Outstanding capital commitments with respect to alternative
investments exist on the part of the Group in an amount of
EUR 1,495.5 million (EUR 1,275.6 million). These primarily
involve as yet unfulfilled payment obligations from invest-
ment commitments given to private equity funds and venture
capital firms.

Group companies are members of the association for the
reinsurance of pharmaceutical risks and several atomic and
nuclear pools. The failure of one of the other pool members to
meet its liabilities would result in an additional call according
to the quota participation.

Hannover Riick SE has put up a guarantee limited to GBP
10 million (EUR 11.7 million) for an indefinite period in favour
of the pension scheme “The Congregational & General Insur-
ance Plc Pension and Life Assurance Scheme” of the
liquidated company Congregational & General Insurance Plc.,
Bradford/UK, at usual market conditions.

The application of tax regulations may not have been resolved
at the time when tax items are brought to account. The calcu-
lation of tax refund claims and tax liabilities is based on what
we consider to be the regulations most likely to be applied in
each case. The revenue authorities may, however, take a
differing view, as a consequence of which additional tax
liabilities could arise in the future.

Hannover Riick SE enters into contingent liabilities as part of
its normal business operations. A number of reinsurance
treaties concluded by Group companies with outside third
parties include letters of comfort, guarantees or novation
agreements under which Hannover Riick SE guarantees the
liabilities of the subsidiary in question or enters into the
rights and obligations of the subsidiary under the treaties if
particular constellations materialise.



8.6. Events after the end of the reporting period
Continuous rain caused a severe weather disaster in July with
major flooding in parts of Germany, Belgium, Austria and
Switzerland. Riots and looting also broke out in South Africa
after the end of the second quarter.

The scale of the insured losses for the Hannover Re Group
cannot as yet be definitively quantified, although overall we
anticipate large loss expenditure in the lower- to mid-triple-
digit millions from the aforementioned events which will
probably not exceed our budget for such events in Q3.

Despite the major losses already incurred after the end of the
reporting period, we are therefore maintaining our previous

guidance for the current financial year.

Hannover, 30 July 2021
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Henchoz Althoff Chevre

Executive Board
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Review report by the independent auditors

To Hannover Riick SE, Hannover

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated interim finan-
cial statements — comprising the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, consolidated cash flow statement and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements — together
with the interim Group management report of Hannover Riick
SE, for the period from 1 January to 30 June 2021, which are
components of the half-yearly financial report pursuant to
§115 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The
preparation of the condensed consolidated interim financial
statements in accordance with the IFRS applicable to interim
financial reporting as adopted by the EU and of the interim
management report for the Group in accordance with the pro-
visions of the German Securities Trading Act applicable to
interim group management reports is the responsibility of the
parent company’s Board of Management. Our responsibility
is to issue a review report on the condensed consolidated in-
terim financial statements and on the interim management
report for the Group based on our review.

We conducted our review of the condensed consolidated in-
terim financial statements and the interim management
report for the Group in accordance with German generally
accepted standards for the review of financial statements

Hannover, 2 August 2021

PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

Mathias Rocker
Wirtschaftsprifer

Dennis Schnittger
Wirtschaftsprifer
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promulgated by the Institute of Public Auditors in Germany
(Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer — IDW). Those standards re-
quire that we plan and perform the review so that we can
preclude through critical evaluation, with moderate assur-
ance, that the condensed consolidated interim financial state-
ments have not been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the IFRS applicable to interim financial
reporting as adopted by the EU and that the interim manage-
ment report for the Group has not been prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the
German Securities Trading Act applicable to interim group
management reports. A review is limited primarily to inqui-
ries of company personnel and analytical procedures and
thus provides less assurance than an audit. Since, in accor-
dance with our mandate, we have not performed a financial
statement audit, we cannot express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, no matters have come to our attention
that cause us to presume that the condensed consolidated
interim financial statements have not been prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the IFRS applicable to
interim financial reporting as adopted by the EU or that the
interim management report for the Group has not been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
provisions of the German Securities Trading Act applicable to
interim group management reports.



Responsibility statement

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the
applicable reporting principles for interim financial report-
ing, the interim consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Group, and the interim management

Hannover, 30 July 2021

Executive Board

report of the Group includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal opportuni-
ties and risks associated with the expected development of
the Group for the remaining months of the financial year.
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Contact information

Corporate Communications

Karl Steinle

Tel. +49 511 5604-1500
Fax +495115604-1648

karl.steinle@hannover-re.com

Media Relations

Oliver SuR

Tel. +49 511 5604-1502
Fax +49 511 5604-1648

oliver.suess@hannover-re.com

Investor Relations

Axel Bock

Tel. +49 511 5604-1736
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axel.bock@hannover-re.com
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